

Ethiopian Civil Service University

Program Handbook

Master's of Arts in Governance and Development

The Horn Institute of Governance and Development (HIGAD)

Addis Ababa – Ethiopia

Contact Name	Dr. Berhanu Beyene
Position	Director
Email	berhanu.beyene@ecsu.edu.et / berhanebeyene@gmail.com
Telephone	+25-11646-2342
Address	HIGAD, ECSU, CMC Road, Addis Ababa – Ethiopia
Date	12 May 2015

Table of Contents

 Program Description	
 2.2 Rationale of the Program 2.3 Program Exit-Level-Outcomes 2.4 Professional Profile 2.5 Prospective Employment Opportunities 2.6 Stakeholders and Partners 2.7 Monitoring, Evaluation and Quality Assurance 2.8 Staff Profile and Facilities 	1
 2.3 Program Exit-Level-Outcomes 2.4 Professional Profile 2.5 Prospective Employment Opportunities 2.6 Stakeholders and Partners 2.7 Monitoring, Evaluation and Quality Assurance 2.8 Staff Profile and Facilities 	2
 2.4 Professional Profile 2.5 Prospective Employment Opportunities 2.6 Stakeholders and Partners 2.7 Monitoring, Evaluation and Quality Assurance 2.8 Staff Profile and Facilities 	3
 2.5 Prospective Employment Opportunities. 2.6 Stakeholders and Partners. 2.7 Monitoring, Evaluation and Quality Assurance. 2.8 Staff Profile and Facilities. 	4
 2.6 Stakeholders and Partners 2.7 Monitoring, Evaluation and Quality Assurance 2.8 Staff Profile and Facilities 	4
2.7 Monitoring, Evaluation and Quality Assurance2.8 Staff Profile and Facilities	5
2.8 Staff Profile and Facilities	5
	5
3. Program Structure and Module Overview	6
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	6
3.1 Program Structure	6
3.2 Module Coding	7
3.3 Module Sequence and Schedule	7
3.4 Learning and Teaching Methods	8
3.5 Language	9
3.6 Learning and Teaching Materials	9
3.7 Mode of Delivery	9
3.8 Assessment	10
4. First Year First Semester	10
4.1 MODULE 1 HGD-5101: Governance, Democracy and Development	10
4.1.1 General Data	11
4.1.2 Module Information	11
4.1.3 Workload	15
4.1.4 Assessment	
4.1.5 Organizational Data	
4.2 MODULE 2 HGD-5102: Security and Peace Building	
4.2.1 General Data	
4.2.2 Module Information	
4.2.4 Assessment	∠ ۱

4.2.5	Organizational Data	22
4.3 MC	ODULE 3 HGD-5103: Comparative Constitutions and Good Governa	ince 22
4.3.1	General Data	22
4.3.2	Module Information	22
4.3.3	Workload	26
4.3.4	Assessment	27
4.3.5	Organizational Data	27
4.4 MC	DDULE 4 HGD-5104: Research Methods in Governance and Develop	pment27
4.4.1	General Data	27
4.4.2	Module Information	28
4.4.3	Workload	31
4.4.4	Assessment	31
4.4.5	Organizational Data	32
4.5 MC	DDULE 5 HGD-5105: Pastoralism and Socio-Economic Transformat	ion . 32
4.5.1	General Data	32
4.5.2	Module Information	32
4.5.3	Workload	37
4.5.4	Assessment	37
4.5.5	Organizational Data	37
5. First	Year Second Semester	37
	Year Second Semester DDULE 6 HGD-5206: Development Policies and Strategies	
		37
5.1 MC 5.1.1	DDULE 6 HGD-5206: Development Policies and Strategies	37
5.1 MC 5.1.1	DDULE 6 HGD-5206: Development Policies and Strategies	37 38
5.1 MO 5.1.1 5.1.2	ODULE 6 HGD-5206: Development Policies and Strategies	37 38 38
5.1 MO 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3	ODULE 6 HGD-5206: Development Policies and Strategies	37 38 38 41
5.1 MO 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5	ODULE 6 HGD-5206: Development Policies and Strategies	37 38 41 41
5.1 MO 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5	ODULE 6 HGD-5206: Development Policies and Strategies	37 38 41 41 41
5.1 MO 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5 5.2 MO	ODULE 6 HGD-5206: Development Policies and Strategies	37 38 41 41 41 41
5.1 MO 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5 5.2 MO 5.2.1	ODULE 6 HGD-5206: Development Policies and Strategies	37 38 41 41 41 41 41
5.1 MO 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5 5.2 MO 5.2.1 5.2.2	ODULE 6 HGD-5206: Development Policies and Strategies	37 38 41 41 41 41 41 42
5.1 MO 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5 5.2 MO 5.2.1 5.2.2 5.2.3	DDULE 6 HGD-5206: Development Policies and Strategies	37384141414141414141
5.1 MO 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5 5.2 MO 5.2.1 5.2.2 5.2.3 5.2.4 5.2.5	DDULE 6 HGD-5206: Development Policies and Strategies	37 38 41 41 41 41 42 46 46
5.1 MO 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5 5.2 MO 5.2.1 5.2.2 5.2.3 5.2.4 5.2.5	DDULE 6 HGD-5206: Development Policies and Strategies General Data Module Information Workload. Assessment Organizational Data DDULE 7 HGD-5207: Regional Integration and Globalization. General Data Module Information Workload. Assessment Organizational Data	37384141414145464647
5.1 MO 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5 5.2 MO 5.2.1 5.2.2 5.2.3 5.2.4 5.2.5 5.3 MO	DDULE 6 HGD-5206: Development Policies and Strategies General Data Module Information Workload Assessment Organizational Data DDULE 7 HGD-5207: Regional Integration and Globalization General Data Module Information Workload Assessment Organizational Data DDULE 8 HGD-5208: Gender, Skill Development and Entrepreneurs	37384141414142464747

5.3.4	Assessment	54
5.3.5	Organizational Data	55
5.4 MC	DDULE 9 HGD-5209: Public Administration, Leadership	and Change
Manageme	ent	55
5.4.1	General Data	55
5.4.2	Module Information	55
5.4.3	Workload	59
5.4.4	Assessment	59
5.4.5	Organizational Data	59
6. Secor	nd Year, First Semester	60
6.1 MC	DDULE 10 HGD-6110: Seminar in Governance and Development	60
6.1.1	General Data	60
6.1.2	Module Information	60
6.1.3	Workload	61
6.1.4	Assessment	62
6.1.5	Organizational Data	62
6.2 MC	DDULE 11 HGD-6111: Master's Thesis Proposal	62
6.2.1	General Data	62
6.2.2	Module Information	63
6.2.3	Workload	64
6.2.4	Assessment	64
6.2.5	Organizational Data	64
7 0	ad Vaar Caaaad Camaatan	0.5
7. Secor	nd Year, Second Semester	65
7.1 MC	DDULE 11 HGD-6212: Master's Thesis	65
7.1.1	General Data	65
7.1.2	Module Information	65
7.1.3	Workload	66
7.1.4	Assessment	66
7.1.5	Organizational Data	67

1. Curriculum Development Team

Below is list of experts involved in curriculum design and development of this specific program.

1. Special Curriculum Development Team

Name	Position/Institute	Email	Telephone
Dr. Berhanu Beyene	Director, HIGAD	berhanu.beyene@ecsu.edu.et	0116-46-2342, 539
Ato Alemayehu	Director, Admission	alemeyss@yahoo.com	0116 463250,
Seberu	Office		304
Ato Ayneabeba	Director, ECSU Reform	ayneabeba1955@gmail.com	0116463255
Andualem	and Good Governance		270
	Follow up Office		

2. Curriculum and Academic Affairs Advisory Team

Name	Position	Email	Telephone
Prof. Melese	Director, School of Graduate	drmelesse@gmail.com	0116 463729
Asfaw.	Studies		368
Ato Alemayehu	Director, Admission Office	alemeyss@yahoo.com	0116 463250,
Seberu			304
Dr. Worku	Staff Member, School of	wnegash@gmail.com	0116 463729
Negash	Graduate Studies;		
	Chairman, HAT		
Dr. Teshome	Director, Research and	teshometafesse@gmail.com	01164675509,
Tafesse	Publication Centre		374
Dr. Wagari	Director, Institute of Leadership	mbetru@yahoo.com	0116466621,
Negari	and Good Governance		435
W/rt Fitsum	Director, Centre for Training	fitsumkebere@yahoo.com	0116452005,
Kebere	and Consultancy		287
Ato Ayeabeba	Director, Reform and Good	ayneabeba1955@gmail.com	11-646 3729
Andualem	Governance Follow up Office		270

2. Program Description

The HIGAD offers a two-year masters program in Governance and Development (MA in Governance and Development). The program is designed for candidates from East African countries (i.e. member states of the IGAD region), initially and envisions to be a centre of continental and global academic studies, research and documentation in good governance and sustainable development. HIGAD's program consists of 9 modules which are offered in two semesters during the first year. During the second year, first semester students of this program will do preliminary research as part of a seminar accompanied by presentation survey on specific areas related to good governance and sustainable development. At the same time, students prepare a thesis proposal to conduct gradating thesis. Finally, during the second year first semester students do their research thesis proposals, while during the

second year second semester, they shall write up their theses, submit the thesis reports and present as part of the thesis defence.

In general, the main aims of the HIGAD are to develop capacity of civil servants in the area of:

- Good governance at institutional, federal, national and regional level;
- Sustainable holistic and transformational socio-economic development;
- Peace building, ensuring security and intercultural collaboration
- Delivery of efficient and transparent public services supported by the information and communication technologies.
- Empowerment and mobilization citizens
- Engagement in academic research and publication focussed on governance and development in the Horn of Africa.

2.1 General Data

Abbreviation	HGD	
	Requirements for candidates to join the HIGAD MA program is fulfilling the admission policy of the ECSU as indicated in Senate legislation as well as the University MA-Admission regulations.	
Prerequisites &	Furthermore, candidates shall be citizens of one of the Horn of Africa	
Requirements	countries (i.e. IGAD member states)	
	• must have a first degree or equivalent from an accredited university with pass grade, i.e. 2.0,	
	 must take entrance exam prepared by the ECSU Admission office and successfully pass 	
	shall have a minimum of two year work experience at public service	
	institutions of IGAD member states;	
	• shall be sponsored by public service institution indicating who will be bounded for a minimum period to serve at the sponsoring	
	institution after graduating from this program.	
	Profile of graduates from this program will be:	
Profile of	• developmental and transformational leaders and managers at	
Graduates	different levels of public service in regional, national and federal states in the Horn of Africa	
	• good governance and sustainable regional development policy analysts and advisors; and	
	 professional teachers and researches in governance and development. 	
Degree Award	The degree award to candidates who successfully complete the program is: Master of Arts (MA) in Governance and Development.	
Frequency of Offer	The program starts every ECSU academic year	

Program Duration	Two years (i.e. four semesters)	
Total ECTS	95	
Graduation	To qualify for graduation and award of Masters of Arts in Governance	
Requirements	and Development, candidates shall fulfil the graduation requirement	
	policy and regulation of the ECSU. The requirements include:	
	successfully complete HIGAD MA modules;	
	• write, submit and defend a thesis supervised by HIGAD's teaching	
	and research staff or advisor assigned by HIGAD	
	• have a minimum of 3.0 cumulative Grade Point Average (GPA)	
	according to the ECSU Masters graduating regulation	

2.2 Rationale of the Program

The establishment of the Horn Institute of Governance and Development (HIGAD) shall endeavour to help address the multifarious issues of good governance and development afflicting nations, nationalities and peoples in countries of the Horn of Africa. The Horn of Africa region has, until recently, been experiencing, both natural and human-driven catastrophes of horrendous proportions. The complex nature of calamities unequivocally urges academics, states and all concerned citizens to thoroughly rethink for better socio-economic development strategies bring about peace, security and holistic regional transformational sustainable development to the region. Towards this end, several initiatives are already underway at regional (inter-governmental) levels to promote multi-faceted regional co-operation in addressing roots problems as well as facilitate mutual effort to eradicate poverty and attain good governance. Initiatives efforts have been undertaken by the Intergovernmental Authority on Development (IGAD), the Nile Basin Initiative (NBI) and the Comprehensive Framework Agreement (CFA) signed by the riparian states of the Nile River. However, much more can be done to galvanize, crystallize and catalyze the efforts of the region towards comprehensive, reciprocally beneficial and sustainable Afro-centric governance models and development trajectories.

Therefore, there has been greater need more than ever before to establish committed public sector management and leadership as well as institutions and institutional capacity to ensure the delivery of socio-economic development premised upon good governance and sustainable public sector management. This necessitated establishing HIGAD as a regional academic study and research institute to develop higher-level intellectual capacity to drive a universal, visionary, inspired regional good governance and development agenda based on the aspirations, and will of the citizens of the Horn of Africa.

The establishment of HIGAD by ECSU is designed to leverage Ethiopia's capacity building in governance and development through best practices and in the process, produce more practitioners highly schooled in public service servants of higher level as well as meet region's good governance, sustainable development and regional integration aspirations. Besides, HIGAD should leverage and nurture the development of that able and versatile corps of public servants sharing a universal vision of a prosperous Horn of Africa, distinguishable by and conspicuous for good governance, peace, prosperity, mutual understanding, social justice, optimism and completely liberated from chronic intolerance, poverty, peacelessness and other forms of human misery and deprivation.

2.3 Program Exit-Level-Outcomes

After the completion of the Masters Degree in Governance and Development Program, graduates should be able to:

- set strategies of intercultural relations and development communication to enhance regional integration,
- promote religion tolerance, conflict management, negotiation and mediation to strengthen local,
 national, regional and global security and peace building;
- analyze public involvement, sustainability and effectiveness development policy, design and implementation;
- examine theories and best practices of development policies, strategies and implementation in the IGAD member states;
- compare constitutions and governance of East African countries,
- apply principles of good governance, public mobilization and delivering efficient public service;
- examine equitability in development interventions, projects planning and management
- develop and use innovative public service delivery systems
- design policies to enhance skill development and entrepreneurship to enhance youth and women employment in the region,
- analyse features of pastoralism, resource and environment management for socio-economic transformation.

2.4 Professional Profile

Profile of candidates for the HIGAD Masters of Arts (MA) program shall be

- employees of public service institutions from the Horn of African countries
- committed to the goal of good governance, sustainable development and regional integration; peace-building, religious tolerance and sustainable human capacity building.

• dedicated to conducting research on areas of public sector governance and development need within the Horn of Africa, preferably one affecting his or her own country

2.5 Prospective Employment Opportunities

Employment opportunities for the graduates of this academic program are in:

- public service institutions,
- ministries and governmental institutions,
- research and higher learning institutions, and
- international organizations.

2.6 Stakeholders and Partners

Individual Clients	Clients come from diverse professional backgrounds and work	
	experiences specifically from civil service sector.	
Institutional	The Ministries of Civil Service, development planning and public	
Clients	service institutions, national, regional and international research and	
	academic institutions.	
Other Important	Employees of the regional and international organizations and such	
Stakeholders	as the IGAD, the African Union (AU), the UN Economic	
	Commission for Africa (ECA), the COMESA and similar	
	organisations. Besides, since Addis Ababa is a diplomatic hub for	
	embassies of several countries of the world, including almost all the	
	fifty-four African nations, the program may attract many other	
	organizations.	

2.7 Monitoring, Evaluation and Quality Assurance

Quality assurance in teaching, learning and research at higher learning institutions in Ethiopia, including the curriculum, learning/teaching materials and the methodology is becoming increasingly important. Therefore, a framework for assessing and ensuring quality of higher learning has been designed and administered by the Ethiopian Higher Education Quality Assurance.

HIGAD strives to design strategy together within the ECSU quality assurance policy to define quality metrics, measurements, and mechanisms ensure the quality of teaching/learning as well as evaluating post operation outcome. The quality assurance process will be done in accordance with the guidelines

of the University, on the basis of the Ethiopian Higher Education Quality Assurance and Relevance Framework coordinated by HERQA. To deliver high quality of services HIGAD:

- designs and develops high quality learning and teaching materials
- assigns well qualified and experienced teaching and research staff,
- invites local and international guest speakers on related issues,
- maintains lower student-teacher ratio,
- continuously offers special competence development training to instructors,
- takes feedback and reflections seriously,
- undertakes pre- and post-monitoring and evaluation of the efficiency of the program ,modules, sessions, as well as teaching and research achievements on a continuous basis as appropriate
- implements a continuous evaluation system and pedagogical methods to assess learning, and
- provides sufficient support services for women, candidates with disabilities, and candidates coming from disadvantaged regions.

2.8 Staff Profile and Facilities

HIGAD will have competent and high profile teaching, research and administrative staff. Besides the institute will obtain the necessary facilities and support services for student-paced learning and undertaking innovative problem-based and participatory research.

HIGAD furnishes, as much as possible, facilities required for teaching and learning, so that the quality of services shall maintain the desired outcome of the program. Some of the facilities and support services are:

- Library, both digital and printed references and reading materials
- IT support services
- Access to Internet within the institute

3. Program Structure and Module Overview

3.1 Program Structure

The HIGAD MA program is two years program prepared for civil servants from East African countries. The academic program is classified into four semesters, where the first two semesters of the first year are dedicated to teaching/learning core modules. The successive two semesters of the second year are allocated for seminar and presentation on various issues and writing a thesis proposal as well as wring up thesis required for graduation. Further structure of the MA program highlights on the module coding, overview of the modules and academic calendar.

3.2 Module Coding

Each module is identified by its own module code with alphabetic-numeric (letters and numbers) system. Module code starts by the abbreviation of the Institute (HGD), followed by academic year, semester, and with two digits (e.g. 01, 02, etc.) of the module continuously. In short, the module coding is designed as:

Institutes code **HGD**), Entry Year (y), Semester (s) and Module (m) Number (sn). Hence the module code / number will be **HGD-ysm(sn)**.

3.3 Module Sequence and Schedule

Year 1 - Semester 1

Module Code	Module Title	ECTS
Module 1 HGD-5101	Governance, Democracy and Development	8
Module 2 HGD-5102	Security and Peace Building	5
Module 3 HGD-5103	Comparative Constitutions and Good Governance	5
Module 4 HGD-5104	Research Methods in Governance and Development	7
Module 5 HGD-5105	Pastoralism & Socio-economic Transformation	5
Total	1	30

Year 1 - Semester 2

Module Code	Module Title	ECTS
Module 6 HGD-5206	Development Policies and Strategies	8
Module 7 HGD-5207	Regional Integration and Globalization	5
Module 8 HGD-5208	Gender, Skill Development and Entrepreneurship	5
Module 9 HGD-5209	Public Administration, Leadership and Change	7
	Management	
Total	'	25

Year 2 - Semester 1

Module Code	Module Title	ECTS
Module 10 HGD-6110	Seminar in Governance and Development	10
Module 11 HGD-6111	Master's Thesis Proposal	10
Total		20

Year 2 - Semester 2

Module Code	Module Title	ECTS

Module 12 HGD-6212	Master's Thesis	20
Total		20
Grand Total		95

3.4 Learning and Teaching Methods

The HIGAD Master's of Arts degree program is based on empirical teaching and learning methodologies aiming at relating conceptual frameworks, policies and practices to realities of governance and development in the Horn of Africa. The methodology is focused on student-centred and problem-solving. This program uses a blend of different teaching and learning methodologies, such as discussions, debating, seminars, cases studies, etc supported by different learning activities, projects and assignments. It will applied in more flexible ways to suite the subject of the module, stakeholders' interest and expectations as well as the intended outcome of the institute's program.

It is also desired that students shall be able to actively participate in the learning system, and shall construct meaning through relevant learning activities. The meaning learning should not be something imparted or transmitted from teacher to learner, but it must be something tangible that learners have to create for themselves. Moreover, the teaching/learning approach at the HIGAD encourages self-regulated and reflective learning. Therefore, the teaching shall serve as catalyst for self-regulated group learning, in which students are expected to allocate more time for out-of-class learning.

Furthermore, the teaching and learning at the HIGAD spotlights primarily on problem solving and participatory teaching/learning process:

- Intended learning outcomes will be well defined and acknowledged by and instructors and learners.
- Adaptive and flexible teaching/learning methodology will be used to achieve the envisaged outcomes.
- Continuous reflective evaluation system will be used to assess students' actual learning outcomes to see how well their learning matches what was intended.
- Feedback on teaching and learning activities will be regularly collected, analyzed, published
 and actions will be taken to integrate vital inputs to improve teaching/learning and the overall
 program.

The HIGAD teaching and learning methodology centres on blended and system to integrate wide range of approaches and technologies to learning and teaching relevant to the HIGAD program.

In lines with, various approaches are adapted to design, develop and deliver learning materials to support different learning styles, where teaching/learning can be accomplished innovatively using diverse tools and devices.

3.5 Language

Language used for learning, teaching and research report writing is English. Mastering English language is hence the prerequisite for candidates to join HIGAD. Candidates shall, therefore, show evidence of fluently speaking and writing skills in English language.

3.6 Learning and Teaching Materials

As indicated in the learning and teaching methodology part, learning materials are designed and developed in line with blended mode delivery. Therefore, learning and teaching materials are mixture of various multimedia, namely:

- presentation materials for face-to-face and online lectures,
- textbooks and handouts.
- supplementary reading and reference materials,
 - o book (available at the ECSU library or HIGAD reference collections),
 - o articles, bulletins and magazines, journals, research papers thesis, proceedings of conferences, seminars and workshops,
 - o Online resources available on Internet or Intranet, and
 - o unpublished documents available at governmental institutions
- audio-Video materials,
 - o lectures captured,
 - o available on Internet/Intranet,

3.7 Mode of Delivery

Mode of delivery for the HIGAD MA-Program is largely face-to-face. It also uses diverse multimedia with a blended approach to suit the interest of students and effectiveness of teaching/learning process. Teaching/learning shall be supported with different types of instructional media

, such as Whiteboard, Liquid Crystal Display (LCD), Flip chart, Magnetic board, etc. as well as use a learning management system (LMS) for uploading and downloading teaching/learning materials and conducting asynchronous and synchronous online discussions and communication.

3.8 Assessment

Learning performance (effectiveness) will be evaluated in various ways based on effective pedagogical principles and the university's Senate Legislation. Hence, the mode of assessment encompasses:

- continuous assessment that include quizzes, tests & home take assignments
- final examination (summative assessment)
- case studies and problem-based projects
- paper presentations on seminars and workshops
- Master's thesis proposal and final Master's thesis, that is required for the graduation

Grading System

Scores	Grade	Grade	Description
	(Letter)	(Point)	
>=85	A	4.00	Excellent
>=75	\mathbf{B}^{+}	3.5	Good
>=70	В	3.00	Satisfactory
>=60	C ⁺	2.50	Unsatisfactory
>=50	С	2.00	Fail
>=45	D	1.00	Fail
<45	F	0.00	Fail

Grade Point Average (GPA): GPA is determined by dividing the total number of grade points earned by the total number of credit hours taken in the semester.

Cumulative Grade Point Average (CGPA): GPA is determined by dividing total number of grade points earned by total number of credit hours taken.

Assessment Maximum Repetition: This is will be undertaken based on the ECSU Senate Legislation.

4. First Year First Semester

4.1 MODULE 1 HGD-5101: Governance, Democracy and Development

4.1.1 General Data

Module Code / Number	HGD-5101	
Module Title	Governance, Democracy and Development	
Module Level	Masters	
Module Type	Core	
Duration	One semester, i.e. 16 weeks	
Frequency of Offer	Once a year, first Semester	
Mode of Delivery	Face-to-face supported by blended multimedia technology	
ECTS	8	

4.1.2 Module Information

Description

This module assumes that socio-economic development is linked intricately to the governance system of a country. Given the immense allocative and distributive power of the state in terms of a country's resources, it is imperative for students to understand how the quality of the exercise of governmental authority has on development and, hence the quality of life of the citizens. It is no longer sufficient to talk about government and its functions, but to go further and consider the quality of government as well. Therefore, the module seeks to analyze the governance and development policy and strategy options given the role of government in globalization, regional integration, good governance, democracy and sustainable development

Principally, the module focuses on the Horn of Africa and acknowledges existence of many centrifugal and centripetal forces at play to affect the governance, democracy and development aspirations of the region. The region has tremendous development potential based on its resource endowment, which resources could be leveraged in several ways to unlock the development potential and benefits that the people of the Horn deserve and have been yearning for, for a long time. Human resource development is one way of the leveraging process hence the focus of this module to produce Horn of Africa oriented graduates with a deep understanding of the relationship among governance, democracy and development as well as what needs to be done to unlock the value that lies in regional integration and understanding.

Content-wise, the module is conceived with the view to address the contemporary problems afflicting the Horn of Africa, ranging from chronic peacelessness, insecurity, underemployment, inequality, underdevelopment, underutilization of resources, and dependence to poor governance, corruption, environmental degradation, and intolerance.

Learning Outcomes

By the end of the module, students should be able to:

- Design national and regional development strategies, programs, projects, and plans.
- Explain national, regional, and international governance and democratic systems within the context of socio-economic development.
- Recommend appropriate governance strategies, programs and plans for sustainable national and institutional governance and democratic systems in the Horn of Africa.
- Evaluate existing systems on governance, democracy and development in the Horn of Africa and beyond.
- Appreciate national and regional initiatives to advance the common values and address the governance, democracy and development challenges in the Horn of Africa.
- Promote knowledge, skills and attitudes relevant for promoting, the governance, democracy and development aspirations of the Horn of Africa, through communication and advocacy

Prerequisites None

Content Outline

Unit 1: Principles of Governance and Development

- 1.1. Principles of State, Politics and Development Nexus
- 1.2. Introduction to Governance Pillars, Democracy and New Frontiers of Development

Unit 2: Tools and Best Practices of Governance and Development

- 2.1. Reform and Institutional Governance
- 2.2. Constitutions and Decentralization
- 2.3. Public Policy and Strategic
- 2.4. Overview of Regional Integration, Governance and Development
- 2.5. Monitoring and Evaluating Governance and Development

Unit 3: Regional Studies in Governance and Development

- 3.1. Contemporary Regional Governance and Development Issues
- 3.2. Water and Geo-Politics
- 3.3. Security, Peace and Insurgency
- 3.4. Immigration and Human-Trafficking

3.5. Infrastructure and Investment

Unit 4: Role of ICT in Governance and Development

- 4.1. Role of ICT, Public Service Delivery and Good Governance
- 4.2. ICT use in Public Service Delivery in the Horn of Africa Case Studies

Learning and Teaching Methods

The teaching and learning methodologies of this module are student-centred and problem solving. It is believed that this module uses a blend of different teaching and learning methodologies such as discussions, debate, seminars, cases studies supported by different learning activities, projects, assignments etc. It uses adaptive flexible teaching and learning methodology to achieve the envisaged learning outcomes. These will be applied in more flexible ways to suite the focus of the module, stakeholders' interest and expectations as well as the intended outcome of the institute's program.

Multimedia Use

Mode of delivery for this module is mainly face-to-face. It also uses diverse multimedia with a blended approach, which is online/offline using learning management system (LMS) including videoconferences that may suit the interest of clients and effectiveness of teaching/learning process. Teaching/learning shall be supported with different types of instructional media, such as Whiteboard, Liquid Crystal Display (LCD), Flip chart, Magnetic board, etc

References

Addison, Tony. 2003. From Conflict to Recovery in Africa. Oxford: Oxford University Press.

Alacevich, Michele. 2009. The *Political Economy of the World Bank: The Early Years*. Stanford Economics and Finance.

- Aksoy, M. Ataman; John C. Beghin. 2005. *Global Agricultural Trade and Developing Countries*. World Bank.
- Andrews, Matt; Jesse McConnell, Alison Wescott. 2010. *Development as Leadership-led Change: A Report for the Global Leadership Initiative*. World Bank Studies.
- Ayoob, Mohammed. 1995. The Third World Security Predicament: State Making, Regional Conflict, and the International System. Lynne Rienner.
- Bannon, Ian (Ed.). 2003. *Natural Resources and Violent Conflict: Options and Actions*. Paul Collier Publishers.
- Braütigan, Deborah. 2000. *Aid Dependence and Governance*. Stockholm: Almqvist and Wiksell International.

- Buckles, Daniel. 1999. *Cultivating Peace: Conflict and Collaboration in Natural Resource Management*. International Development Research Centre.
- Cawthra, Gavin, and Robin Luckham, eds. 2005. *Governing Insecurity: Democratic Control of Military and Security Establishments in Transitional Democracies*. London: Zed Books.
- Chang, Ha-Joon. 2002. Kicking Away the Ladder? Policies and Institutions for Economic Development in Historical Perspective. New York: Anthem Press.
- Collier, Paul (Ed.). 2005. Understanding Civil War: Evidence and Analysis Africa.
- de Willebois, Emile van der Does. 2010. Nonprofit Organizations and the Combatting of Terrorism Financing: A Proportionate Response. World Bank Working Papers
- Danaher, Kevi. 1994. 50 Years Is Enough: The Case against the World Bank and the International Monetary Fund. South End Press.
- de Alcántara, Hewitt. 1998. Uses and Abuses of the Concept of Governance. UNESCO.
- DFID. 2005. Why We Need to Work More Effectively in Fragile States. London: Department for International Development.
- _____ 2001. *Making Government Work for Poor People*. London: Department for International Development.
- Eriksson, John Robert; Margaret Arnold; Colin S. Scott. 1998 *The World Bank's Experience with Post-Conflict Reconstruction*. Independent Evaluation Group Studies.
- Findlay, Ronald; Kevin H. O'Rourke. 2007. *Power and Plenty: Trade, War, and the World Economy in the Second Millennium.* Princeton University Press.
- Garcia, Marito; Andrew Sunil Rajkumar. 2008. Achieving Better Service Delivery ThroughDecentralization in Ethiopia. World Bank Working Papers 132.Adjustment in Africa: Reforms, Results, and the Road Ahead (1994). Policy Research Reports.
- Go, Delfin Sia (Ed.). 2008. Africa at a Turning Point?: Growth, Aid, and External Shocks. John Page.
- Goldin, Ian; Kenneth Reinert. 2007. (Revised edition). *Globalization for Development: Trade, Finance, Aid, Migration, and Policy*. World Bank
- Gonzalez-Pelaez, Ana. 2005. *Human Rights and World Trade: Hunger in International Society*. Routledge.
- Hewko, John. 2002. "Foreign Direct Investment: Does the Rule of Law Matter?" Working Paper. Washington, D.C.: Carnegie Endowment for International Peace.
- Hope, Kempe Ronald. 1996. *Development in the Third World: From Policy Failure to Policy Reform.*M. E. Sharpe.
- Kaufmann, Daniel. 2003. "Rethinking Governance: Empirical Lessons Challenge Orthodoxy." Washington, D.C.: The World Bank.

- Kiely, Ray 2005. The Clash of Globalisations: Neo-Liberalism, the Third Way, and Anti-Globalisation. Brill.
- Levy, Brian, and Sahr Kpundeh, eds. 2004. *Building State Capacity in Africa: New Approaches, Emerging Lessons*. Washington, D.C.: The World Bank.
- Lyon, Sarah and Mark Moberg. 2010. Fair Trade and Social Justice: Global Ethnographies. New York University Press.
- Manor, James 2006. Aid that Works: Successful Development in Fragile States.
- Moigne, Gu Le and Syed S. Kirmani. (1997). Fostering Riparian Cooperation in International River Basins: The World Bank at Its Best in Development Diplomacy. World Bank Technical Papers.
- Moon, Bruce E. 2000. Dilemmas of International Trade. Westview Press.
- Moore, Mick. 2001. "Political Underdevelopment: What Causes 'Bad Governance?" *Public Management Review*. Vol. 3:385-418.
- Narlikar, Amrita. 2003. *International Trade and Developing Countries: Bargaining Coalitions in the GATT & WTO*. Routledge.
- O'Brien, Mitchell; Frederick Stapenhurst, Niall Johnston (Eds.). 2008. *Parliaments as Peacebuilders in Conflict-Affected Countries*. WBI Learning Resources Series.
- Sadoff, Claudia W.; Dale Whittington, David Grey 2003. *Africa's International Rivers: An Economic Perspective*. Directions in Development.
- Sarfaty, Galit A. 2012. *Values in Translation: Human Rights and the Culture of the World Bank.*Stanford University Press.
- Steger, Manfred B. 2003. Globalization: A Very Short Introduction. Oxford University Press.
- Trails, *Pirate*. 2013. *Tracking the Illicit Financial Flows from Pirate Activities off the Horn of Africa* Washington, DC: World Bank Studies..
- World Bank. 2014. Africa Development Indicators 2012/2013. Africa Development Indicators.
- _____ 2013. Creating Jobs in Africa's Fragile States: Are Value Chains an Answer? Directions in Development.
- _____(2008). Accelerating Catch-up: Tertiary Education for Growth in Sub-Saharan Africa.

 Directions in Development.
- _____ 2003. *Breaking the Conflict Trap: Civil War and Development Policy*. Policy Research Reports.

4.1.3 Workload

Contact Hours	80 hours
Self-Study Hours	160 hours

4.1.4 Assessment

Description	Assessment will be base on continuous formative evaluation and summative evaluation principles. Students' learning and		
•	understanding about the module will thus be evaluated based on:		
	• Tests/books/articles review: 20%		
	• Assignment: 40%		
	o Group work: 20%		
	o Individual work: 20%		
	• Final Exam: <u>40%</u>		
	Total 100%		
Examination Types	written		
Examination Duration	3 hours		
Assignments	Quiz, project, wring semester paper, presentation		
Repetition	Based on ECSU policy		

4.1.5 Organizational Data

Module Authors(s)	Full Name	Position / Title	Contact Address
	HIGAD	Professor/Associate/	HIGAD, ECSU,
		Assistant Professor	Addis Ababa,
			Ethiopia
Responsible for	Full name	Position / title	Contact address
Module Teaching*	HIGAD	Professor/Associate/	HIGAD, ECSU,
		Assistant Professor	Addis Ababa,
			Ethiopia
Teaching Sessions	Will be specified while the institute starts operation		

4.2 MODULE 2 HGD-5102: Security and Peace Building

4.2.1 General Data

Module Code /	HGD-5102
Number	
Module Title	Security and Peace Building
Module Level	MA
Module Type	Core
Frequency of Offer	Once a year, first Semester
Mode of Delivery	Face-to-face supported by blended multimedia technology

Duration	One semester, i.e. 16 weeks
ECTS	5

4.2.2 Module Information

Description

Conflict resolution and prevention; maintaining security and peace building are serious issues of the Horn of Africa, the IGAD, the African Union and member states as well as the Regional Economic Communities. Regional security and sustainable peace -building in the Horn of Africa in particular are viewed as broad notions, which give high emphasis to socio-economic transformation and regional integrating processes. It is also taken as a general consensus that sustainable security, peace and stability have become metrics to longstanding development good governance. Towards this end, several initiatives and measures have been taken to engage governments, higher learning and research institutions at all levels. All these have led to on one hand increasing demand for competent leadership in social reconstruction, conflict management and peace-building, on the other hand thorough research on the root causes of conflict and peacelessness, especially in the Horn of Africa.

With focus on the Horn of Africa, this module aims at providing a holistic knowledge and practical skills to learners to analyse and understand conflict management, security and peace building targeted at transforming violent conflicts by peaceful means, promoting peace, rebuilding societies affected by war and preventing violence from re-erupting. Besides, it address the evolving nature of present-day conflict and bridges current academic findings with the latest insights from peace building practice in the region

Learning Outcomes

By the end of the module, learners should be able to:

- analyse and link theoretical and conceptual knowledge with the policies, strategies and practice in security peace-building in the Horn of Africa
- reflect critically on regional conflict resolutions, security peace-building mechanisms,
 practices and learned experiences
- evaluate national and regional security and peace-building policies and tools
- promote conflict management, peace-building and maintaining security efforts in the Horn of Africa
- state the value maintaining peace and security at national and regional level

Prerequisites: None

Content Outline

- Unit 1: Regional Conflict Management, Security and Peace-building Practice
 - 1.1. Practice of Regional Conflict Management
 - 1.2. Regional Peace-Building Efforts in the Horn of Africa
 - 1.3. Challenges of Regional Security and Peace-Building in the Horn of Africa
- Unit 2: Context Specific and Sensitive Peace-building Interventions
 - 2.1. Understanding Context Specific and Sensitive Peace-building
 - 2.2. Conflict sensitive approaches
 - 2.3. Dialogue and Peace-building Mediation
- Unit 3: Exploration of Indigenous Mechanisms in Conflict Management and Peace-building
 - 3.1. Traditions in Conflict Management and Peace-building
 - 3.2. Exploration of Peace-building Methodologies
 - 3.3. Cultural values and Conflict
 - 3.4. Management Indigenous Dispute Resolution Mechanisms
 - 3.5. Gender in Conflict Management and Peace-building
 - 3.6. Cases in Conflict Management and Peace-building

Unit 4: Conflict Prevention

- 4.1. Identifying and analysing Roots of Conflicts
- 4.2. Conflict Analysis,
- 4.3. Early Warning and Intervention
- 4.3. Social Mobilisation in Conflict Prevention
- **Unit 5**: Negotiation and Mediation in Peace-building Process
 - 5.1. Principles and Methods of Negotiation in Peace-building Process
 - 5.2. Mediation in Peace-building Process
 - 5.3. Culture of Negotiation and Mediation
 - 5.4. Balancing Power of Negotiation
 - 5.5. Hindrances in Negotiation and Mediation
- **Unit 6:** Dealing with the Past Peace-building
 - 6.1. Analyse Past Peace-building
 - 6.2. Reconciliation in Peace-building
- Unit 7: Tools for Conflict Management and Peace-building
 - 7.1. Tools for Conflict Management

- 7.2. Instruments for Peace-building
- 7.3. Models and Practices

Learning and Teaching Methods

The teaching and learning methodology followed by the HIGAD focuses on student-centred and problem-solving. It is believed that this program uses a blend of different teaching and learning methodologies supported by different activities and assignments, such as discussions, debating, seminars, cases studies, project, etc. Teaching and learning will be applied in more flexible ways to suite the focus of the module, stakeholders' interest and expectations as well as the intended outcome of the institute's program.

Multimedia Use

Mode of delivery for this module is mainly face-to-face. It also uses diverse multimedia with a blended approach, which is online/offline using learning management system (LMS) including video-conferences that may suit the interest of clients and effectiveness of teaching/learning process. Teaching/learning shall be supported with different types of instructional media such as Whiteboard, Liquid Crystal Display (LCD), Flip chart, Magnetic board, etc.

References

- African Union (200): Protocol Relating to the Establishment of the Peace and Security Council of the African Union. Addis Ababa, 2002.
- Bercovitch, Jacob, Kremenyuk, Victor, Zartman, I. William (eds.), (2008): The SAGE Handbook of Conflict Resolution, London: Sage.
- Chantal de Jonge Oudraat, (1996): "The United Nations and Internal Conflict," in Michael E. Brown, Ed. *The International Dimensions of Internal Conflict*, Cambridge: The MIT Press, pp. 489-535.
- Charles Tilly (2003): *The Politics of Collective Violence*, Cambridge, Mass.: Cambridge University Press.
- Cousens, Elizabeth M. / Kumar, Chetan (eds.), (2001): Peacebuilding as Politics: Cultivating Peace in Fragile Societies, Boulder: Lynne Rienner.
- Dan Lindley, (1996): "Collective Security Organizations and Internal Conflict," in Michael E. Brown, Ed. *The International Dimensions of Internal Conflict*, Cambridge: The MIT Press, pp. 537-568.

- I.W. Zartmann and J. Rasmussen, (Eds.), (1997): *Peacemaking in International Conflict: Methods and Techniques*, Washington, DC: United States Institute of Peace.
- Jane Boulden, (ed.), (2003): Dealing With Conflict in Africa: The United Nations Regional Organizations, New York: Palgrave Macmillan
- Joseph S Nye Jr. (2003): Understanding International Conflict: An Introduction to Theory and History, New York: Longman.
- Ken Booth and Peter Vale (1997): "Critical Security Studies and Regional Security: The Case of Southern Africa", In Krause, K. & M. Williams (eds.), *Critical Security Studies: Concepts and Cases*, Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press
- Laremont, Ricardo (ed), (2002): The causes of war and the consequences of peacemaking in Africa. Portsmouth, NH: Heinemann, 2002.
- Louis Kriesberg, (2009): "The Evolution of Conflict Resolution." In Handbook of Conflict Resolution, Jacob Bercovitch, Victor Kremenyuk, and I. William Zartman, Eds. London: Sage.
- Michael E. Brown and Richard N. Rosencrance (eds.), (1999): *The Costs of Conflict: Prevention and Cure in the Global Arena*, Lanham: Rowman and Littlefield.
- Mwagiru, Makumi (2004): *Africa regional security in the age of globalization*. Nairobi: Heinrich Boll Foundation,.
- Mwanika, Philip A N. (2006): A critical analysis of the role of track-one diplomacy in confl ict management: A case study of the Kenyan mediation of the Somali Confl ict, 2002 2004 (unpublished MA thesis, Jesuit Institute of Peace Studies and International Relations, Catholic University of Eastern Africa, Nairobi
- Philip Njuguna Mwanika (2006): A critical analysis of the role of track-one diplomacy in confl ict management: A case study of the Kenyan mediation of the Somali confl ict, 2002–2004 (unpublished thesis), Institute For Peace Studies and International Relations, Catholic University of Eastern Africa, Nairobi, 2006.
- Reimann, Cordula, (2004): Assessing the State-of-the-Art in Conflict Transformation, in Berghof Handbook for Conflict Transformation, Berlin: Berghof Conflict Research.
- Ricardo Rene Laremont (ed),(2002): The causes of war and the consequences of peacemaking in Africa, Portsmouth, NH: Heinemann, 2002, 179–84.
- Richard King (2007): "The Association of 'religion' with violence: Reflections on a Modern Trope," in John R Hinnels and Richard King eds., *Religion and Violence in South Asia: Theory and Practice*, London: Routledge, pp. 226-257.
- Robert H. Bates (October 1999):, 'Ethnicity, Capital Formation, and Conflict', *Centre for International Development (CID) Working Paper* No. 27, Harvard University.

- Saadia Touval, and I. William Zartman, (2001): "International Mediation in the Post-Cold War Era", in Chester A. Crocker; Fen Osler Hampson & Pamela Aall Eds. *Turbulent Peace. The Challenges of Managing International Conflict*. Washington D.C.: United States of Peace Press, pp. 427–443.
- Sean Molloy (2003), "Realism: A Problematic Paradigm," *Security Dialogue*, PRIO,vol.34, No.1, pp. 71-85.
- Stedman, Stephen, (2001): Implementing Peace Agreements in Civil Wars: Lessons and Recommendations for Policymakers, New York: International Peace Academy.
- Stephen J. Stedman, (1996): "Negotiation & Mediation", in Michael Brown, (Ed.), *The International Dimensions of Internal Conflict*, Cambridge, Massachusetts: MIT Press, pp. 341–376.
- Tom Woodhouse and Oliver Ramsbotham, (2000) Eds. *Peacekeeping and Conflict Resolution*, London: Frank Cass.
- World Bank (2005): Confl ict in Somalia: Drivers and dynamics. Nairobi: World Bank Department of Public Information.
- Wulf, Herbert/Debiel, Tobias, 2010: Systemic Disconnects: Why Regional Organizations Fail to Use Early Warning and Response Mechanisms, In: Global Governance 16 (4), 525-547.

4.2.3 Workload

Contact Hours	50 hours
Self-Study Hours	100 hours
Total Hours	150 hours

4.2.4 Assessment

Description	Assessment will be base on continuous formative evaluation and summative evaluation principles. Students' learning and		
	understanding about the module will thus be evaluated based on:		
	• Tests/books/articles review: 20%		
	Assignment:	40%	
	o Group work: 20%		
	o Individual work: 20%		
	• Final Exam: 40%		
	Total 100%		
Examination Types	written		
Examination Duration	3 hours		
Assignments	Quiz, project, wring semester paper, presentation		
Repetition	Based on ECSU policy		

4.2.5 Organizational Data

Module Authors(s)	Full Name	Position / Title	Contact Address
	HIGAD	Professor/Associate/	HIGAD, ECSU,
		Assistant Professor	Addis Ababa,
			Ethiopia
Responsible for Module	Full name	Position / title	Contact address
Teaching*	HIGAD	Professor/Associate/	HIGAD, ECSU,
		Assistant Professor	Addis Ababa,
			Ethiopia
Teaching Sessions	Will be specified v	while the institute starts o	peration

4.3 MODULE 3 HGD-5103: Comparative Constitutions and Good Governance

4.3.1 General Data

Module Code / Number	HGD-5103
Module Title	Comparative Constitution and Good Governance
Module Level	MA
Module Type	Core
Frequency of Offer	Every year, first semester
Duration	One semester, i.e. 16 weeks
ECTS	5

4.3.2 Module Information

Description

The module "Comparative Constitution and Good Governance" aims at providing students with indepth knowledge and skill on constitutional frame work, federalism, contemporary public law and the impact on good governance in the horn of Africa. The Core focus this module is on analyzing, discussing and debating on constitutional law and constitutional framework as well as federalism and state organization in Ethiopia and other countries in the Horn of Africa. The module will be taught on a comparative basis, focusing constitutional law, federalism and good governance in the region.

Learning Outcomes

After completing the module, the student is able to:

- reflect on the concept of law and constitution;
- distinguish among constitutions;
- compare constitutional development;
- Explain the principles of constitution, democracy, decentralization and good governance;
- analyse political and economic theories underlying federalism;
- determine the strengths and weaknesses of federalism as a mechanism of nation and state building;
- resolve inter-governmental problems at federal, regional and local levels of government; and
- examine constitutions, federal structures and processes towards realizing sustainable socioeconomic and political development

Prerequisites: none

Content Outline

Unit 1: Concepts of Law and Constitution

- 1.1. Purposes and Sources of Law
- 1.2. Law Making and Hierarchy of Laws
- 1.3. Principles and Features of Constitution

Unit 2: Fundamental Concept of Constitutional Law

- 2.1 Rule of Law
- 2.2 Democracy
- 2.3 Constitutionalism and Limited Government
- 2.4 System of Government (Presidential Vs Parliamentary)
- 2.5 The Concept of State and Government
- 2.6 Principle of Separation of Powers
- 2.7 Checks and Balances

Unit 3: Comparative Constitutional Development in Selected Horn of African Countries

- 3.1. The FDRE Constitution and the Constitutional Framework in Ethiopia
 - 3.1.1 Features and Fundamental Principles
 - 3.1.2 Fundamental Rights and Freedoms
 - 3.1.3. State Structure and Distribution of Powers
 - 3.1.4. Organs of Government and their Relations
- 3.2. The Constitution and the Constitutional Framework in Kenya
 - 3.2.1 Features and Fundamental Principles

- 3.2.2 Fundamental Rights and Freedoms
- 3.2.3. State Structure and Distribution of Powers
- 3.2.4. Organs of Government and their Relations

Unit 4: Federalism: An Overview

- 4.1 Concept of Federalism
- 4.2 Historical development of Federalism
- 4.3 Formation of Federalism;
- 4.4 State Organization (Federal, Unitary, Non-federal)
- 4.6 Rationales to Adopt Federal System
- 4.7 Federalism and Intergovernmental Relations

Unit 5: Good Governance

- 5.1 Meaning and Concept of Governance
- 5.2 Meaning and Concept of Good Governance
- 5.3 Standards and Principles of Good governance
- 5.4 Challenges to Good Governance
- 5.5 Good Governance in Ethiopia and Kenya: Challenges and Prospects

Learning and Teaching Methods

• The teaching and learning methodology followed by the HIGAD focuses on student-centred and problem solving. It is believed that this program uses a blend of different teaching and learning methodologies supported by different activities and assignments, such as discussions, debating, seminars, cases studies, project, etc. Teaching and learning will be applied in more flexible ways to suite the focus of the module, stakeholders' interest and expectations as well as the intended outcome of the institute's program.

Multimedia Use

Mode of delivery for this module is mainly face-to-face. It also uses diverse multimedia with a blended approach, which is online/offline using learning management system (LMS) including videoconferences that may suit the interest of clients and effectiveness of teaching/learning process. Teaching/learning shall be supported with different types of instructional media, such as Whiteboard, Liquid Crystal Display (LCD), Flip chart, Magnetic board, etc.

References

A. Books

- Aberra Jembere, Material to the study of Administrative Law, (Unpublished, Faculty of law Addis Ababa University).
- AlfredC. Aman & William T. Mayton, Administrative Law, 1993.
- Barnett, Constitution & Administrative Law, 1996.
- Ernes Gellhorn, Administrative law & Process in a Nutshell, 1972.
- Girma Woldesselassie, Materials on Administrative Law (Unpublished, Faculty of Law, Addis Ababa University).
- Paul Clapham, Ethiopian Constitutional Development (in Two Vols.).
- Ian S. Fraser, "The Administrative Framework for economic development in Ethiopia" Journal of Ethiopian Law, Vol. III No.1
- Robert G. Means, "The constitutional Right of Judicial Review of Administrative proceedings:
- Threshold Questions "Journal of Ethiopian Law, Vo. III No.1
- Seyoum Haregot, "The Role of the Council of Ministers in the Legislative process." Journal of Ethiopian Law Vol. V No. 2
- Stephen & Richard, Adminstrative Law and Regulatory Policy, 1979
- Asmelash Beyene, 'Some Notes on the Evaluation of Regional Administration in Ethiopia', Ethiopian Journal of Development Research. IX: I (1987).
- Basta R., Lidija and Fleiner, Thomas, Federalism, Federal States and Decentralization in Basta, R., Lidija and Fleiner, Thomas, eds., Federalism and Multi-ethnic States: The Case of Switzerland (Fribourg: Institute Du Federalism, 1996).
- Dilip, Mookherjee and Bardhan, Pranab, Decentralization and Local Governance in Developing Countries (London: The MIT Press, 2006).
- Kassahun Berhanu, 'Decentralization, Local Government and Federalism in Ethiopia' in Kassahun Berhanu, etal. eds., Electoral Polities Decentralized Governance and Constitutionalism in Ethiopia (Addis Ababa: Addis Ababa University Press, 2007).
- Mathew, George, 'The Functioning of Local Government and their Relationship with Upper Levels of Government' in Kincaid, John and Chattopadhyay, Rupak, eds. Local Government in Federal System Vol. 4 (New Delhi: Brijbasi Art Press, 2009).
- Mohanty K. Prasanna, 'Municipal Decentralization and Governance: Autonomy, Accountability and Participation' in Mathur P.C. Jha. S.N, eds., Decentralization and Local Polities (New Delhi, London: Sage Publications, 1999).
- Smith B. Kevin, etal. Governing States and Localities (Washington D.C: CQ Press, 2005).
- Steytler, Nico, 'Comparative Reflections on Local Government and Metropolitan Regions in Federal Systems' in Blindenbacher, Raoul and Pasma, Chandra, Dialogues on Local Government and Metropolitan Regions in Federal Countries, Vol.6 (Canada: Imprimerie Gavin, 2007).

- Meheret Aynew, 'A Rapid assessment of Woreda Decentralization' in Taye Assefa and Tegegne Gebre Egziabher eds, Decentralization in Ethiopia (Addis Ababa: Forum of Social Studies, 2007).
- Tegegne Gebre Egziabher and Kassahun Berhanu, 'A Literature Review of Decentralization in Ethiopia' in Taye Assefa and Tegegne Gebre Egziabher, eds., Decentralization in Ethiopia (Addis Ababa: Forum of Social Studies, 2007).
- Burgess Michael, Comparative Federalism: Theory and Practice (London: Rutledge 2006)
- Elazar, Daniel, Exploring Federalism (Tuscaloosa, AL: University of Alabama Press, 1987).
- Hueglin, Thomas and Alan Fenna, Comparative Federalism, A Systematic Inquiry (Broadview press, 2006).
- Linder, Wolf, Swiss Democracy: Possible Solutions to Conflict in Multicultural societies 2nd ed. (New York: St. Martin's Press, 1998).
- Lidija Basta and Thomas Fleiner eds., Federalism and Multiethnic States: The Case of Switzerland v. 16 2nd edn. (Friborg: PIFF, Helbing and Lichtenhahn, 2000).
- Turton, David ed., Ethnic Federalism: The Ethiopian Experience in Comparative Perspective (Oxford: James Currey, 2006).
- Zerihun Yimer, the Status of Local Governments in Ethiopia: A Comparative Study (Germany: Lap Lambert Academic Publishing GmbH Co.).

B. Constitutions

- Proclamation No. 1/1995, Proclamation of the Constitutions of Federal Democratic Republic of Ethiopia, Federal Negarit Gazette, 1st year, No.1, Addis Ababa 21st August, 1995, adopted on 8th of December 1994 and came in to force on 21st August, 1995
- National Council for Law Reporting (2010): The Constitution of Kenya, Revised Edition 2010

 Published by the National Council for Law Reporting with the Authority of the Attorney

 Genera

Constitutions of the Republic of South Africa, 1996.

Constitutions of India that came into force on the 26th of January 1950(as amended until 2003).

4.3.3 Workload

Contact Hours	50 hours
Self-Study Hours	100 hours
Total Hours	150 hours

4.3.4 Assessment

Description	Assessment will be base on continuous formative evaluation and summative evaluation principles. Students' learning and		
	understanding about the module will thus b		
	 Tests/books/articles review: 	20%	
	Assignment:	40%	
	o Group work:	20%	
	Individual work:	20%	
	Final Exam:	<u>40%</u>	
	Sum total	100%	
Examination Types	written		
Examination Duration	3 hours		
Assignments	Quiz, project, wring semester paper, presentation		
Repetition	Based on ECSU policy		

4.3.5 Organizational Data

Module Authors(s)	Full Name	Position / Title	Contact Address
	HIGAD	Professor/Associate/	HIGAD, ECSU,
		Assistant Professor	Addis Ababa,
			Ethiopia
Responsible for	Full name	Position / title	Contact address
Module Teaching*	HIGAD	Professor/Associate/	HIGAD, ECSU,
		Assistant Professor	Addis Ababa,
			Ethiopia
Teaching Sessions	Will be specified while	the institute starts operar	tion

4.4 MODULE 4 HGD-5104: Research Methods in Governance and Development

4.4.1 General Data

Module Code / Number	HGD-5104
Module Title	Research Methods in Governance and Development
Module Level	MA
Module Type	core
Frequency of offer	Every year, first semester
Duration	One semester, i.e. 16 weeks
ECTS	7

4.4.2 Module Information

Description

This module describes the research methods (qualitative, quantitative, and mixed) required at graduate

level so that students will be able to carry out their master thesis. On top of that, students will be given

an opportunity to develop report-writing skills by exposing them to the real situations of the country.

The module includes topics; introduction to research, structure of research, qualitative, quantitative,

and mixed research, and analysis of data and the ethics and politics of social research. At the end,

students shall be given an assignment to conduct real research to be presented in the class as part of

the practical exercise.

Learning Outcomes

At the end of this module, the student shall be able to:

• Figure out the fundamental-concepts of research in governance and development;

• identify the various types of research paradigms in governance and development;

differentiate between quantitative and qualitative researches;

identify ethical and unethical research behaviours;

undertake research; and

analyze data using various data analysis tools

write full-fledged research report

Prerequisites: None

Content

Unit 1: Overview of Research Methodology in Governance and Development

1.1 Concepts and Essence of Research Methodology

1.2 The Research Paradigm Shift

1.3 Characteristics of Research in Good Governance and Development

Unit 2: Quantitative Research Method

2.1 Concepts of Quantitative Research Method

2.2 Classification of Quantitative Research

2.3 The Design of Quantitative Methods

2.4 Variables and Scales of Measurement

- 2.5 Data Gathering Techniques
- 2.6 Techniques of Data Analysis, interpretation and write ups
- 2.7 Format of a Research Project

Unit 3: Qualitative Research Method

- 3.1 Meaning and Characteristics of Qualitative Research
- 3.2 Approaches to Qualitative Research Design
- 3.3 Methods of Qualitative Research
- 3.4 Analysis and Interpretation of Qualitative Data
- 3.5 Evaluation Research
- 3.6 Ethical Guidelines in Qualitative Research
- 3.7 Outline for Qualitative Research Proposal

Unit 4: Applied Research Methods in Governance and Development

- 4.1. Empirical Research in Governance and Development
- 4.2. Action Research
- 4.3. Ethnography and Grounded Theory
- 4.4. Reflective and Participatory Research

Learning and Teaching Methods

The teaching and learning methodologies of this module are student-centred and problem solving. It is believed that this module uses a blend of different teaching and learning methodologies such as discussions, debate, seminars, cases studies supported by different learning activities, projects, assignments etc. It uses adaptive flexible teaching and learning methodology to achieve the envisaged learning outcomes. These will be applied in more flexible ways to suite the focus of the module, stakeholders' interest and expectations as well as the intended outcome of the institute's program.

Multimedia Use

Mode of delivery for this module is mainly face-to-face. It also uses diverse multimedia with a blended approach, which is online/offline using learning management system (LMS) including video-conferences that may suit the interest of clients and effectiveness of teaching/learning process. Teaching/learning shall be supported with different types of instructional media, such as Whiteboard, Liquid Crystal Display (LCD), Flip chart, Magnetic board, etc.

References

- Avramidis E. & B. Smith, 1999. An Introduction to the Major Research Paradigms and their Methodological Implications for Research, Emotional and Behavioural 27-36
- Bergold, Jarg & Thomas, Stefan, 2012. Participatory Research Methods: A Methodological Approach in Motion [110 paragraphs]. Forum Qualitative Sozialforschung / Forum: Qualitative Social Research, 13 (1). Art. 30, http://nbn-resolving.de/urn:nbn:de:0114-fqs1201304.
- Bickman, Leonard and Debra Rog, editors, 1998. *Handbook of applied social research methods*. Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage.
- Brady, Ivan, 2006. Poetics for a planet. In Norman Denzin and Yvonna Lincoln, editors, *Handbook of qualitative research*, third edition. Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage.
- Cassell, C.M., Buehring, A., Symon, G., Johnson, P. and Bishop, V. (2005) Qualitative Management Research: A Thematic Analysis of Interviews with Stakeholders in the Field, Report for the ESRC.
- Creswell, J.W. 2009. Research Design: Qualitative, Quantitative and Mixed Methods Approaches.

 Thousand Oaks, Calif: Sage Publication
- Creswell, John and Vicki Plano Clark, 2006. *Designing and conducting mixed methods research*.

 Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage.
- Denzin, Norman and Michael Giardina, 2008. *Qualitative inquiry and the politics of evidence*. Walnut Creek, CA: Left Coast Press.
- Davies, M.B. 2007. Doing a successful Research Project: using Quantitative and Qualitative Research Methods.. New York: Palgrave McMillan
- Ercikan, Kadriye and Wolff-Michael Roth, editors, 2008. *Generalizing from educational research:*Beyond qualitative and quantitative polarization. London: Taylor & Francis.
- Flick, Uwe, 2002. An introduction to qualitative research. London: Sage.
- Glser, B. G. And Struass, A. L. 1999. The *Discovery of Grounded Theory: Strategies for Qualitative Research*. Paperback Ed. New York: Aldine de Gruyter
- Gomm, R 2009. Key concepts in Social Science Research Methods. Basing stoke: Palgrave McMillan Greene, Jennifer, 2007. *Mixed methods in social inquiry*. San Francisco: Jossey- Bass.
- Johnson, Burke and Larry Christensen, 2008. *Educational research: Quantitative, qualitative, and mixed approaches*, third edition. Thousand Oaks,CA: Sage.
- Kemmis, Stephen and Robin McTaggart, 2006. Participative action research. In Norman Denzin and Yvonna Lincoln, editors, *Handbook of qualitative research*, third edition. Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage.
- McNabb, D.E 2008. Research methods in Public Administration and Non profit Management: quantitative and qualitative approaches. Armonk, N.Y.: Sharpe, Inc

- McIntyre, A. 2008. Participatory Action Research. Los Angeles, London, New Delhi, Singapore: SAGE Publications
- Mertens, Donna and Pauline Ginsberg, 2008. *The handbook of social research ethics*. Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage.
- Neuman W L 2000. Social research methods Qualitative and quantitative approaches, Allyn and Bacon Pub (4th ed)
- O'sullivan, E. 2010. Research Methods for public Administrations. New York: Longman
- Pascaru, M. 2013: Participatory Research and Good Governance Principles in Local Development Funding
- Patton, M.Q. 2002. Qualitative Research and Evaluation Methods. Thousand Oaks, Calif.: Sage Publication, International Journal of Education and Research Vol. 1 No. 7 July 2013
- Pettit, J. 2010. Learning to do Action Research for Social Change, International Journal of Communication 4 (2010), Feature 820-827
- Senn, C.Y. 2005. You can change the Word. Action, Participatory and Activist Research. In: F.W. Schneider J.A. Gruman L.M. Coutts (Eds.), Applied Social Psychology. Understanding and Addressing Social and Practical Problems. (pp. 355-374). Thousand Oaks, London, New Dehli: Sage Publications.
- Stake, Robert, 2006. Multiple case study analysis. New York: Guilford Press.
- Stake. Robert E. 2010. Qualitative Research, *Studying How Things Work*, The Guilford Press, New York London
- Wolf, P. 2010. Methods for Qualitative Management Research, in the Context of Social Systems

 Thinking, Forum Qaulitative Social Research, Volume 11, No. 3, Art. 3, September 2010

4.4.3 Workload

Contact Hours	70 hours
Self-Study Hours	140 hours
Total Hours	210 hours

4.4.4 Assessment

Description	summative evaluation principles. Students'	Assessment will be base on continuous formative evaluation and summative evaluation principles. Students' learning and understanding about the module will thus be evaluated based on:	
	Tests/books/articles review:	20%	
	Assignment:	40%	
	o Group work:	20%	
	o Individual work:	20%	

	Final Exam:	<u>40%</u>
	Sum total	100%
Examination Types	written	
Examination Duration	3 hours	
Assignments	Quiz, project, wring semester paper, presentation	
Repetition	Based on ECSU policy	

4.4.5 Organizational Data

Module Authors(s)	Full name	Position / title	Contact address
	HIGAD	Professor/Associate/	HIGAD, ECSU,
		Assistant Professor	Addis Ababa,
			Ethiopia
Responsible for Module	Full name	Position / title	Contact address
Teaching*	HIGAD	Professor/Associate/	HIGAD, ECSU,
		Assistant Professor	Addis Ababa,
			Ethiopia
Teaching Sessions	Will be specified	while the institute starts	operation

4.5 MODULE 5 HGD-5105: Pastoralism and Socio-Economic Transformation

4.5.1 General Data

Module Code / Number	HGD-5105
Module Title	Pastoralism and Socio-economic Transformation
Module Level	MA
Module Level	Masters
Module Type	Core
Duration	16 weeks
Frequency of	Once a year, first Semester
Offer	
Mode of Delivery	Face-to-face supported by blended multimedia technology
ECTS	5

4.5.2 Module Information

Description

The module focuses on thoroughly analyzing the livelihood of millions of pastoral society of the Horn of Africa, challenges facing pastoralism due to environmental, regional, global changes and the role of developmental state policy in transforming the socio-economic and environmental situation of this

sector. Pastoralism in the East Africa is one of the serious issues in terms of socio-economic

sustainable development, environmental and resource management, good governance, peace and

security and regional integration. Moreover, the livelihood of pastoralists is growing worsening due to

climate change and environmental degradation, demographic pressure (rapid population growth) and

trans-boundary socio-economic and political turmoil. These are commonly shared challenges of each

country of the Horn of Africa. Focus will be also given on infrastructure development; problems of

recurrent drought, peace and security; challenges in resource sharing and management; as well

provision of public services, like educations, healthcare, community services, etc. .

Learning Outcomes

At the end of the learning this module, students shall be able to:

explain the history, traditions and livelihood of the pastoralist societies of the region

critically analyse the steadily changing nature of pastoralist livelihood

examine the effect of increasing regional, global socio-economic and political transformations

and development policies and associated challenges,

analyse policy intervention options to improve pastoralist societies' livelihood

identify the challenges of environmental and natural resource management for pastoralist

communities

determine the needs for national and regional policy intervention for environmental conservation,

and resource management; peace-building, disaster management and security; and provision of

33

basic social services

state the value of pastoralist society in the process of socio-economic transformation in the Horn

of Africa

Prerequisites: none

Content Outline

Unit 1: Introduction to Pastoralism

1.1. Introduction to Pastoralism

1.2. Studying Pastoralism

Unit 2: Exploring the Pastoral Communities of the Horn of Africa

2.1. Pastoralism in the Horn of Africa

2.2. Country Case Studies

Unit 3: Dynamics of Pastoral Systems

- 3.1. Pastoral Socio-economic Systems
- 3.2. Regional and Global Political and Socio-economic Settings

Unit 4: Challenges in Pastoralism in the Horn of Africa

- 4.1. Regional Development Policy and Provision of Social Services
- 4.2. Environmental
- 4.3. Cross-Border Issues
- 4.4. Peace and Security

Unit 5: Socio-Economic Transformation and Pastoralism in the Horn of Africa

- 5.1. Need for Socio-Economic Transformation
- 5.2. Opportunities and Challenges for Socio-Economic Transformation of Pastoralism
- 5.3. Harmonising Pastorialism Socio-Economic Transformation Policies

Learning and Teaching Methods

The teaching and learning methodology followed by the HIGAD focuses on student-centred and problem-solving. It is believed that this program uses a blend of different teaching and learning methodologies supported by different activities and assignments, such as discussions, debating, seminars, cases studies, project, etc. Teaching and learning will be applied in more flexible ways to suite the focus of the module, stakeholders' interest and expectations as well as the intended outcome of the institute's program.

Multimedia Use

Mode of delivery for this module is mainly face-to-face. It also uses diverse multimedia with a blended approach, which is online/offline using learning management system (LMS) including video-conferences that may suit the interest of clients and effectiveness of teaching/learning process. Teaching/learning shall be supported with different types of instructional media, such as Whiteboard, Liquid Crystal Display (LCD), Flip chart, Magnetic board, etc.

References

Behnke, R. (2006). The Economic Contribution of Pastoralism: Case Studies from the Horn of Africa and Southern Africa, Rep. No. EARO/76572-000/999. IUCN.

Belshaw D and Malinga M, 1999. "The Kalashnikov economies of the Eastern Sahel: Cumulative or cyclical differentiation between nomadic pastoralists", Paper presented at the first workshop of the study group on conflict and security of the Development Studies Association, South Bank University (University of East Anglia, 1999).

- Belshaw D, Avery S, Hogg R and Obin R 1999. "Report of the evaluation mission: Integrated development in Karamoja", Uganda project (Overseas Development Group, Norwich and UNCDF: New York, 1996).
- Birgegard, L E, 1993. "Natural resources tenure: A review of issues and experiences with emphasis on sub-Saharan Africa" (Rural Development Studies, Swedish University of Agriculture Science/International Rural Development Centre: Uppsala, 1993).
- Boku Tache. 2000. Changing patterns of resource control among the Borana pastoralists of southern Ethiopia: a lesson for developing agencies. In *Pastoralists and Environment. Experiences from the greater Horn of Africa*. L. Manger and A.G.M Ahmed eds. Addis Ababa: OSSREA.
- CENESTA (2004). The Role of Qashqai Nomadic CommUnit ies in Reducing Vulnerability to Recurrent Drought and Sustainable Livelihoods Development in Iran. Rural Institutions and Participation Service, FAO, I.
- Constantinous B T, 1999. "Alternative natural resources management systems: Procession and strategic dimensions in governing the environment", in Okoth-Ogendo, H W O and Tumushabe G W (eds.), *Political Change and Natural Resource Management in Eastern Africa and Southern Africa* (ACTS: Nairobi, 1999).
- Cousins B, 1996. "Conflict management for multiple resources users in pastoralist and agropastoralist contexts", IDS Bulletin vol 27, no 3, 1996, pp 41-54.
- Elliot Fratkin (2001): East African Pastoralism in Transition: Maasai, Boran, and Rendille Cases African Studies Review, Volume 44, Number 3 (December 2001), pp. 1-25
- FDRE (Federal Democratic Republic of Ethiopia). 2002. Statement on Pastoral Development Policy. Addis Ababa: Ministry of Federal Affairs
- Gadamu, F. 2000. Arid Land and the Role of Pastoral Nomads in the Economic and Political Integration of the Horn of Africa with particular Reference to Ethiopia. Occasional Paper No. 15. Addis Ababa: Ethiopian International Institute for Peace and Development (EIIPD).
- Gueydon, A., Roder, N. (2003). Institutional Settings in Co-operative Pastoral Systems in Europe: First Results from the LACOPE Research Project. Presented at The Commons in Transition: Property on Natural Resources in Central and Eastern Europe and the Former Soviet Union, Regional Conference of the International Association for the Study of Common Property. Prague. http://dlc.dlib.indiana.edu/archive/00001060/.
- Hadley J, 1997. Pastoralist cosmology: The organizing framework for indigenous conflict resolution in the Horn of Africa (Eastern Mennonite University: VA, USA, 1997)
- Hagmann, T. 2006. Pastoral Conflict and Resource Management in Ethiopia's Somali Region. PhD dissertation, Switzerland: IDHEAP, Université de Lausanne.

- Helen de Jode, Ced Hesse (2011) Strengthening Voices: How pastoralist commUnit ies and local government are shaping strategies for adaptive environmental management and poverty reduction in Tanzania's drylands
- Hesse, C., Thebaud, B (2006) Will Pastoral Legislation Disempower Pastoralists in the Sahel? Indigeneous Affairs 1/2006: Africa and the Nillinium Development Goals., 1/2006
- Hodgson, Dorothy. 1999. "Images and Interventions: The Problems of Pastoralist Development." InD. Anderson and V. Broch-Due, eds., "The Poor Are Not Us" Poverty And Pastoralism In EastAfrica, 221-39. London: James Currey.
- Hogg, R. 1996. Government Policy and Pastoralism: Some Critical Issues. In *Conference on Pastoralism in Ethiopia*, S. Edwards and T. Mesfin, eds. Paper presented at a conference held by the Pastoralist Forum Ethiopia and the Ministry of Ethiopia, February 4–6, 1993, Addis Ababa. Addis Ababa: Pastoralist Forum Ethiopia, Addis Ababa: Ministry of Agriculture.
- Kenya, R.o. (2000). Livestock Marketing from Pastoral Areas: A Strategy for Pastoralist Development. Arid Lands Resources Management Project (ALMP) In Conjunction with SNV, OXFAM and World Concern, Office of the President, Nairobi.
- McPeak, J., Little, P. (2006) Pastoral Livestock Marketing in Eastern Africa; Research and Policy Challenges. ITDG.
- Mohammud Abdulahi. 2007. The Legal Status of the Communal Land Holding System in Ethiopia:

 The Case of Pastoral CommUnit ies. *International Journal on Minority and Group Rights* 14:
 85–125
- Moris, Jon R. 1999. *Under* Three Flags: The Policy Environments for Pastoralism in Ethiopia and Kenya.SR/GL–CRSP Pastoral Risk Management Project Technical Report No. 04/99. Logan, Utah: Utah State University.
- Muhereza, E., Ossiya, S. (2004). Pastoralism in Uganda People, Environment and Livestock:

 Challenges for the PEAP. Kampala. Uganda National NGO Forum and Civil Society Political
 Task Force.
- Sugule, J. and R. Walker. 1998. *Changing Pastoralism in the Ethiopian Somali National Regional State*. Survey Report. Addis Ababa: South East Rangelands Project and UNDP Emergencies Unit for Ethiopia.
- UNDP (2003). Pastoralism and Mobility in the Drylands: The Global Imperative. www.undp.org/drylands/docs/cpapers/PASTORALISM%20PAPER%20FINAL.doc.
- Waters- Bayer, B., A., Lossau, V A. (1995). Participatory Planning with Pastoralists: Some Recent Experiences. Drylands ProgramLondon: International Institute for Environment and Development (IIED).

- Yacob, Arsano. 2000. Pastoralism in Ethiopia: The Issues of Viability. In *National Conference on Pastoral Development in Ethiopia*. Paper presented at a conference held by the Pastoralist Forum Ethiopia, February 2, 2000, Addis Ababa. Addis Ababa: Ethiopia Pastoralist Forum.
- Zaal, Fred, and Ton Dietz. 1999. "Of Markets, Maize, and Milk: Pastoral Commodi-tization in Kenya." In D. M. Anderson and V. Broch-Due, eds., The Poor Are Not Us: Poverty and Pastoralism in Eastern Africa, 163-98. Oxford: James Currey,

4.5.3 Workload

Contact Hours	50 hours
Self-Study Hours	100 hours
Total Hours	150 hours

4.5.4 Assessment

Description	Assessment will be base on continuous formative evaluation and summative evaluation principles. Students' learning and understanding about the module will thus be evaluated based on:	
	 Tests/books/articles review: 	20%
	Assignment:	40%
	o Group work:	20%
	Individual work:	20%
	Final Exam:	<u>40%</u>
	Sum total	100%
Examination Types	written	
Examination Duration	3 hours	
Assignments	Quiz, project, wring semester paper, presentation	
Repetition	Based on ECSU policy	

4.5.5 Organizational Data

Module Authors(s)	Full Name	Position / Title	Contact Address	
	HIGAD	Professor/Associate/	HIGAD, ECSU,	
		Assistant Professor	Addis Ababa,	
			Ethiopia	
Responsible for	Full name	Position / title	Contact address	
Module Teaching*	HIGAD	Professor/Associate/	HIGAD, ECSU,	
		Assistant Professor	Addis Ababa,	
			Ethiopia	
Teaching Sessions	Will be specified while the institute starts operation			

5. First Year Second Semester

5.1 MODULE 6 HGD-5206: Development Policies and Strategies

5.1.1 General Data

Module Code / Number	HGD-5206
Module Title	Development Policy and Strategy
Module Level	MA
Duration	One semester, i.e. 16 weeks
Frequency of Offer	Once a year, first Semester
Mode of Delivery	Face-to-face supported by blended multimedia technology
ECTS	8

5.1.2 Module Information

Description

Development policies are part of broader public policy geared towards addressing development challenges. The lack of clearly articulated development policies with flawless implementation strategies is one major factor hindering achievement of development targets in many developing countries. Development policy making is concerned with human welfare and is responsible for issuing guidelines and legislation meant to enforce it. Clear development strategies help in enforcement of the policies in a feasible, effective and efficient manner. While efforts by different development partners like the public organizations shape national development and improve the quality of life of the citizens, absence of integrated and robust development policy limits development initiatives. This module is intended to provide the participants with understanding of the theoretical framework of policy process, approaches to development policy formulation, analysis and implementation.

Prerequisites: HGD-5101

Learning Outcomes

Upon successful completion of the Module, the students will be able to:

- examine theories, concepts and models of development policy process
- formulate guidelines for participatory development policy formulation and implementation
- develop tools and strategies for effective policy analysis and implementation
- design solutions to specific planning and development problems
- implement integrative development policies and systems at national, sectoral and sub-national levels

- evaluate the impacts of development policies from socio-economic, spatial and environmental perspectives
- appreciate the role of government in development of a country

Contents

Unit 1: Framework of Development Policy

- 1.1. Framework for development policy comparison across political systems
- 1.2. Making public policy- the process, structure and context
- 1.3. Regulation politics, bureaucracy and economy
- 1.4. Players in development policy –institutional and non-institutional actors

Unit 2: Developmental State: Policies and Strategies

- 2.1. Fundamental and Principles of Developmental
- 2.2. Strategies of Developmental State
- 2.3. Cases of Developmental State Policy in the Horn of Africa

Unit 3: Democratic governance, development policy and implications

- 3.1. Approaches to sustainable development and the role of policy
- 3.2. Sustainable development- current and future challenges
- 3.3. Sustainable rural development
- 3.4. New urban strategy
- 3.5. Capacity building for sustainable development

4. Unit 4: Sustainable development- national and regional experiences

- 4.1. Private and public sector interfaces- Prerequisite for sustainable development
- 4.2. Best practices in sustainable development: Case Studies of Development policy implementation

Learning and Teaching Methods

The teaching and learning methodology followed by the HIGAD focuses on student-centred and problem-solving. It is believed that this program uses a blend of different teaching and learning methodologies supported by different activities and assignments, such as discussions, debating, seminars, cases studies, project, etc. Teaching and learning will be applied in more flexible ways to suite the focus of the module, stakeholders' interest and expectations as well as the intended outcome of the institute's program.

Multimedia Use

Mode of delivery for this module is mainly face-to-face. It also uses diverse multimedia with a blended approach, which is online/offline using learning management system (LMS) including video-conference that may suit the interest of clients and effectiveness of teaching/learning process. Teaching/learning shall be supported with different types of instructional media, such as Whiteboard, Liquid Crystal Display (LCD), Flip chart, Magnetic board, etc.

References

- African Development Bank. 2005. *African Development Report 2005*. Oxford: Oxford University Press
- Brewer, G D and deLeon, P (1983): The Foundations of Policy Analysis, Brooks/Cole, Monterey, CA. B. Guy Peters and Frans K M Van Nispen (1998): Public Policy Instruments: Evaluating the tools of
- B. Guy Peters and Frans K M Van Nispen (1998): Public Policy Instruments: Evaluating the tools o Public Administration, Edward Elgar Northampton, MA, USA
- Constantinous B T, 1999. "Alternative natural resources management systems: Process and strategic dimensions in governing the environment", in Okoth-Ogendo, H W O and Tumushabe G W (eds.), *Political Change and Natural Resource Management in Eastern Africa and Southern Africa* (ACTS: Nairobi, 1999).
- David M. Anderson and Vigdis Broch-Due (1999) The poor are not us: Poverty and Pastoralism in Eastern Africa
- Gedeon M. Mudacumura, Desta Mebratu, M. Shamsul Haque (2006): Sustainable Development Policy and Administration, Taylor & Francis Group, Boca Raton London New York
- Hogwood Brian W. and Lewis A. Gunn, (1984): Policy Analysis for the Real World, Oxford: Oxford University Press.
- John Blewitt (2008) Understanding Sustainable Development. Earthscan, London, UK.
- Leon Van den Dool (2005): Making Local Government Work: An Introduction to Public Management for Developing Countries and Emerging Economies, Erasmus University Rotterdam (EUR)
- Kenneth N. Bickers, John T. William (2001): Public Policy Analysis, Houghton Mifflin Company, New York
- McCord, G., Sachs, J.D. & Wing, T.W. 2005. Understanding African Poverty: Beyond the Washington Consensus to the Millennium Development Goals Approach. *In* Teunissen, J.J. & Akkerman, A. (eds.), *Africa in the World Economy The National, Regional and International Challenges*. The Hague: FONDAD.
- Paul A. Sabatier (1999): Theories of the Policy Process, Westview press, 5500 Central Avenue Boulder, Colorado 80301-2877
- Stella Z. Theodoulou and Matthew A. Cahn (1995): Public Policy: The Essentials Readings, Prentice Hall; Upper Saddle River, New Jersey 07458
- Subroto Athor, (2011): Understanding Complexities in Public Policy Making Process through Policy Cycle Model: A System Dynamics Approach. Universitas Indonesia Gd. Dep. Manajemen., FEUI, Kampus Baru UI Depok-16424, Indonesia
- Thomas A Birkland, (2001): An Introduction to the Policy Making Process: Theories, Concepts and Models of Public Policy Making. M.E Sharpe, Inc, 80 Business Park Drive, Armonk, New York 10504.
- Thomas R. Dye, (2011): Understanding Public Policy, Pearson Education, Inc, 13th Edition.

Thomas R. Dye, (2005): Understanding Public Policy, Pearson Prentice Hall upper Saddle River, New Jersey 07458, 11th Edition.

Wayne Parsons, (1995): An Introduction to the Theory and Practice of Policy Analysis. Edward Elgar Publishing Ltd, Glensanda House Montpellier Parade Cheltenham Glos GL50 1UA UK.

5.1.3 Workload

Contact Hours	80 hours
Self-Study Hours	160 hours
Total Hours	240 hours

5.1.4 Assessment

	Assessment will be base on continuous formative evaluation and	
Description	summative evaluation principles. Students' learning and	
	understanding about the module will thus be ev	valuated based on:
	 Tests/books/articles review: 	20%
	Assignment:	40%
	o Group work:	20%
	Individual work:	20%
	Final Exam:	<u>40%</u>
	Sum total	100%
Examination Types	written	
Examination Duration	3 hours	
Assignments	Quiz, project, wring semester paper, presentation	
Repetition	Based on ECSU policy	

5.1.5 Organizational Data

Module Authors(s)	Full Name	Position / Title	Contact Address	
	HIGAD	Professor/Associate/	HIGAD, ECSU,	
		Assistant Professor	Addis Ababa,	
			Ethiopia	
Responsible for	Full name	Position / title	Contact address	
Module Teaching*	HIGAD	Professor/Associate/	HIGAD, ECSU,	
		Assistant Professor	Addis Ababa,	
			Ethiopia	
Teaching Sessions	Will be specified while the institute starts operation			

5.2 MODULE 7 HGD-5207: Regional Integration and Globalization

5.2.1 General Data

Module Code / Number	HGD-5207
----------------------	----------

Module Title	Regional Integration and Globalization
Module Level	MA
Duration	One semester, i.e. 16 weeks
Module Type	Core
Frequency of Offer	Once a year, first Semester
Mode of Delivery	Face-to-face supported by blended multimedia technology
ECTS	5

5.2.2 Module Information

Description

Regional integration measures have been practiced in many parts of the world with varying results, some efforts doomed to be as less successful than as preconceived. The regional integration efforts of countries of the Greater Horn are one example that faced challenges. Factors the impediments need to be well researched from the point of view peace, security and cross boarder conflicts, good governance as well as the impact globalization. Recent socio-economic development and technological change has awakened interest to rethink about revealing the barriers to foster regional integration to bring about even regional development among the countries of the Horn of Africa.

This module critically reviews experiences of regional integration efforts of IGAD and other regional integration efforts. It also focuses on the aspiration of faster and well-though regional integration based on good governance and regional transformational sustainable socio-economic development. The module throws light on what sort of basic socio-economic and political convergence criteria that ought to be met in order to roll out the full-fledged regional integration as well as reveal what sort of challenges does the new phase of globalization posed

Learning Outcomes

Upon completion of this module, participants will be able to:

- identify challenges and opportunities of regional integration and impact of globalisation on the Horn of Africa
- evaluate the policies and practice of regional integration
- analyze how sustainable development, good governance are interlinked to enhance regional integration
- design strategies and policies towards regional integration

Prerequisite HGD-5102

Content Outline

Unit 1: Regional Co-operation and Globalization

- 1.1. Regional Co-operation and Globalization
- 1.2. Frameworks of Regional Co-operation

Unit 2: Challenges and Opportunities of Regional Integration

- 2.1. Regional Integration in view of Globalisation
- 2.2. Challenges
- 2.2. Opportunities

Unit 3: Growing Interdependence vs. Regional Environmental Resources Management

- 3.1. Regional Interdependence and Collaboration
- 3.2. Interdependence and Regional Resources Management
- 3.3. Environmental Management

Unit 4: Global institutions to Sustain and Regulate Market System

- 4.1. Globalisation and Market System
- 4.2. Regulatory Systems in Globalisation

Unit 5: Models of Regional Integration

- 5.1. Models of Regional Integration
- 5.2. Identity and Regional Integration

Unit 6: Challenges and Opportunities in Regional Integration

- 6.1. Opportunities of Regional Integration
- 6.2. Challenges in Regional Integration

Unit 7: Case Studies

- 7.1. IGAD
- 7.2. ECOWAS
- 7.3. The European Union

Learning and Teaching Methods

The teaching and learning methodologies of this module are student-centred and problem solving. It is believed that this module uses a blend of different teaching and learning methodologies such as discussions, debate, seminars, cases studies supported by different learning activities, projects, assignments etc. It uses adaptive flexible teaching and learning methodology to achieve the envisaged learning outcomes. These will be applied in more flexible ways to suite the focus of the module, stakeholders' interest and expectations as well as the intended outcome of the institute's program.

Multimedia Use

Mode of delivery for this module is mainly face-to-face. It also uses diverse multimedia with a blended approach, which is online/offline using learning management system (LMS) including videoconferences that may suit the interest of clients and effectiveness of teaching/learning process. Teaching/learning shall be supported with different types of instructional media, such as Whiteboard, Liquid Crystal Display (LCD), Flip chart, Magnetic board, etc.

References

- Baregu, Mwesiga (2005) "The African Economic CommUnit y and the EAC: Any Lessons from the EU?" In Rok Ajulu (ed.) "*The Making of a Region, the Revival* Frank J. Lechner and John Boli (2008), The Globalization Reader
- Constantinous, B T, 1999. "Alternative natural resources management systems: Processual and strategic dimensions in governing the environment", in Okoth-Ogendo, H W O and Tumushabe G W (eds.), Political Change and Natural Resource Management in Eastern Africa and Southern Africa (ACTS: Nairobi, 1999).
- Cousins B, 1996. "Conflict management for multiple resources users in pastoralist and agropastoralist contexts", IDS Bulletin vol 27, no 3, 1996, pp 41-54.
- Dunn, John (ed.) (1978) West African States: Failure and Promise, London: Cambridge University Press.
- EAC (2000) Perspectives on the Regional Integration and Cooperation in East Africa, Arusha: EAC Secretariat.
- Economic Commission for Africa. 2010. Assessing Regional Integration in Africa IV: Enhancing Intra-African Trade [Online]. Available: http://www.uneca.org/aria4/index.htm
- EAC (2005) Protocol in the Establishment of the East African CommUnit y Customs Union, Arusha: EAC Secretariat.
- EAC (2001) East African CommUnit y: Challenges and Opportunities, Arusha: EAC Secretariat. of the East African CommUnit y" Institute of Global Dialogue, Midrand.
- Economic Commission for Africa. 2004. *Assessing Regional Integration in Africa*. ECA Policy Research Report. Addis Ababa: Economic Commission for Africa.
- Edi, Eric, I., (2007) Globalization and Politics in the Economic CommUnit y of West African States, Carolina Academic Press
- Edigheji, Omano 2005: A DemocraticDevelopmental State in Africa? A Concept Paper, Research Report 105, Johannesburg: Centre for Policy Studies.

- Fritz, Verena/Menocal, Alina Rocha (eds.) 2007: Developmental States in the New Millennium.

 Concepts and Challenges for a New Aid Agenda, in: Development Policy Review, 25 (5), 531-552
- Hartzenberg, T. & Kalenga, P. 2007. A Deeper Regional Integration Agenda for SADC. *In*: Bösl, A. et al. (eds.), *Monitoring Regional Integration in Southern Africa*, Yearbook Vol. 6 2007. Stellenbosch: Trade Law Centre for Southern Africa.
- Kim, Soon Yang 2008: The East Asian Developmental State and its Economic and Social Policies.

 The Case of Korea, in: International Review of Public Administration, 12 (2), 69 -87
- Koppensteiner, Petra (2004) "The Process of European Integration from 1951 to 2004 and Possible Lessons for the African Union. University of Pretoria. Accessed from www.up.za/academic/cips/publications
- Lee, Magaret (2002) "Regionalism in Africa: A Part of the Problem or A Part of the Solution" Polis, Vol 9.
- Leftwich, Adrian 2005: Democracy and Development. Is there Institutional Compatibility?, in: Democratization, 12 (5), 686 -703
- Mackie, Jamie 1998: Development and Democratisation in East and Southeast Asia,in: Agenda, 5 (3), 335-346.
- Mattli, Walter (1999) The Logic of Regional Integration: Europe and Beyond, Cambridge: Cambridge University Press. Chapt. 1-3.
- Mattli, Walter (2000) "Sovereignty Bargains in Regional Integration" International Studies Review, Vol, 2 No. 2 pp. 149-180. (www.jstor.com)
- Mardon, Russell 1990: The State and the Effective Control of Foreign Capital. The Case of South Korea, in: World Politics, 43 (1), 111 138
- McCarthy, C. 2010. Reconsidering regional integration in sub-Saharan Africa, *In:* Tralac, *Supporting regional integration in east and southern Africa*. Stellenbosch: Trade Law Centre for Southern Africa.
- Mkandawire, Thandika 2001: Thinking about developmental states in Africa, in: Cambridge Journal of Economics, 25 (3), 289 313Nyerere, Julius K., (1963) "A Unit ed States of Africa" Journal of Modern African Studies, Vol. 1, No. 1, 1963
- Musamba, Charity 2009: The Developmental State and Poverty Reduction in Africa. The Case of Zambia, Doctoral dissertation, Duisburg: Universität Duisburg -Essen.
- Nissanke, Machiko/Aryeetey, Ernest (eds.) 2003: Comparative Development Experiences in East Asia and Sub -Sahara Africa. An Institutional Approach, Aldershot: Ashgate.

- Nyirabu, Mohabe, (2010) "East African Integration: Past, Present and Future", Mimeo, University of Dar es Salaam. Review of International Political Economy, Vol. 9, No. 1. Pp. 123- 149. (www.jstor.com)
- Nyirabu, Mohabe, (2004) "Appraising Regional Integration in Southern Africa" *African Security Review*, Vol. 13, No. 1.
- OECD, "The 2008 Financial Crisis—A Crisis of Globalization?" in *Economic Globalization: Origins* and Consequences, OECD Publications, 2013,
- Okollo, Julius, (1985) "Integrative and Cooperative Regionalism: ECOWAS" *International Organization*, Vol. 39. No. 1.
- Phillip O. Nyinguro (2005) "The EAC's Prospects on the Global Stage" In Rok Ajulu (ed.) "The Making of a Region, the Revival of the East African CommUnity" Institute of Global Dialogue, Midrand
- Rok Ajulu (2005) The Making of a Region, the Revival of the East African CommUnit y" Institute of Global Dialogue, Midrand.
- SADC (1992) "Towards Economic Integration" Document Presented at the SADC Annual Conference, Maputo, 29-31, January
- Schiff, Maurice & Winters, Alan A. (2003) Regional Integration and Development, Oxford University Press, Washington.
- Yoshimatsu, Hidetaka (2002) "Preferences, Interests, and Regional Integration: The Development of the ASEAN International Cooperation Arrangement",

5.2.3 Workload

Contact Hours	50 hours
Self-Study Hours	100 hours
Total Hours	150 hours

5.2.4 Assessment

	Assessment will be base on continuous forma	Assessment will be base on continuous formative evaluation and		
Description	summative evaluation principles. Students' le	summative evaluation principles. Students' learning and		
	understanding about the module will thus be	understanding about the module will thus be evaluated based on:		
	• Tests/books/articles review: 20%			
	Assignment:	40%		
	o Group work:	20%		
	o Individual work:	20%		

	Final Exam:	<u>40%</u>
	Total	100%
Examination Types	written	
Examination Duration	3 hours	
Assignments	Quiz, project, wring semester paper, presentation	
Repetition	Based on ECSU policy	

5.2.5 Organizational Data

Module Authors(s)	Full Name	Position / Title	Contact Address
	HIGAD	Professor/Associate/	HIGAD, ECSU,
		Assistant Professor	Addis Ababa,
			Ethiopia
Responsible for Module	Full name	Position / title	Contact address
Teaching*	HIGAD	Professor/Associate/	HIGAD, ECSU,
		Assistant Professor	Addis Ababa,
			Ethiopia
Teaching Sessions	Will be specified w	hile the institute starts o	peration

5.3 MODULE 8 HGD-5208: Gender, Skill Development and Entrepreneurship

5.3.1 General Data

Module Code / Number	None
Module Title	Gender, Skills Development and Entrepreneurship
Module Level	Masters
Module Type	Core
Duration	One semester, i.e. 16 weeks
Frequency of	Once a year, second Semester
Offer	
Mode of Delivery	Face-to-face supported by blended multimedia technology
ECTS	5

5.3.2 Module Information

Description

The demographic profile of the Horn of Africa testifies to the fact that the youth and women constitute large proportions of the population. Indications are that this trend is going to be a feature of the region's demographic profile for a considerable period in the future. Given the fact that the population of the region is growing exponentially, it is undeniable that the number of women and the youth will continue to constitute the larger proportion as well. In all countries of the region, the youth and women are confronted by a plethora of developmental challenges. These challenges manifest themselves through a multiplicity of issues ranging from unemployment, peacelessness, and lack of access to resources and livelihoods, intolerance, dearth of skills on HIV-AIDS, poverty, vulnerability, war and exclusion from mainstream socio-economic processes. The youth and women still remain under-represented and disadvantaged in many spheres of social enterprise even though they constitute the largest segment of the region's population. This situation cannot remain tenable for long. Given the fact of numerical superiority, it is evident that the youth and women are a slumbering giant whose awakening is only a matter of time given the potential unleashed by globalization, a force that has made the world not only a 'global village' but an 'information communication community y' in which developments in diverse and remote parts of the world traverse the planet in increasingly shorter times.

Given the fact that there is increasing awareness of developments across the divides of the world, the youth and women of the region will become more and more demanding and assertive of their entitlements in the development dividend. Quite clearly, the issues of the youth and women are increasingly becoming not mere development issues but also governance imperatives. The future prosperity will not merely depend on availability of natural endowments and states' ability to mobilize national and international development capital but also on the extent to which governments of the Horn of Africa are going to harness the energy, talent and social capital latent in the youth and women of the region. Strategies, policies, and initiatives designed to unleash the potential of the youth and women of the region are increasingly becoming less and less optional but imperative. While it is true that governments of the Horn of Africa have taken measures in the past and continue to implement youth and women empowerment programs, the need for optimizing efforts and initiatives is an inescapable reality that has to be managed more judiciously for the benefit of the peoples, nations and nationalities of the region.

Cognisant of the above, the module therefore seeks to, interrogate and deconstruct existing modernist normative assumptions about the youth-women-development nexus, given the current postmodern narratives regarding the role of the developmental state, globalization, regional integration, good governance, and sustainable development, with regards to skills development, empowerment, and access to, and, ownership of national resources, inclusiveness, participation and entrepreneurship. The module proceeds on the premise that the Horn of Africa has remarkable development potential based not only on its natural resource endowment but also its youth and women who, in themselves, constitute both an opportunity and strength if properly managed; but also a potential source of debilitating weakness and perennial threat to the welfare of the entire region if mismanaged. Thus, it is t the calculated intention of the module to develop a critical mass of public managers equipped with the intellectual and attitudinal disposition to leverage the development of the Horn of Africa through agile, creative, versatile and innovative programs of youth and women's participation in mainstream development initiatives and undertakings. Thus, the module is conceived with the view to addressing the contemporary challenges of the youth-women-development nexus but also to anticipate future potential threats and opportunities related to the empowerment of these significant segments of the population of the Horn of Africa. The module seeks to produce national and regional managers with strategic excellence postures to unleash the potential of the youth and women in development of the Horn of Africa

Learning Outcomes

By the end of the module, students should be able to:

- analyze national, regional, and international gender, skills and entrepreneurship issues within the context of socio-economic development challenges, opportunities and threats in the Horn of Africa.
- design national and regional skills and entrepreneurial development strategies, programs, projects
- develop gender streamlined governance and development strategies, programs and projects that lead to coherent, robust sustainable institutional, national and regional systems
- Explain the development aspirations and challenges of the youth and women within the context of skills development and entrepreneurship in the Horn of Africa.
- evaluate existing assumptions and narratives on youth and women's participation in the Horn of Africa and beyond.
- argue to advance the common ethical values and gender equality for good governance and sustainable development of the Horn of Africa.

 promote entrepreneurship skills development for youth and women in the Horn of Africa through communication and advocacy.

Prerequisites: HGD-5101

Content Outline

Unit 1: Youth and Development

- 1.1. Characteristics of Horn of Africa Youths
- 1.2. Risk, vulnerability and adaptation
- 1.3. Representation and participation
- 1.4. Investing in young people
- 1.5. Impacts HIV-AID, Poverty, livelihoods, entrepreneurship on Development
- 1.6. Comparative development and engagement policies

Unit 2: Women and Development

- 2.1. Perspectives on gender equality and sustainable development
- 2.2. Food security, livelihoods, green economy and gender equality
- 2.3. Best practices in women development policies and strategies
- 2.4. Investment in sustainable women's development
- 2.5. Comparative experiences in women's empowerment in Africa

Unit 3: Skills Development

- 3.1. Skills and livelihoods development policies
- 3.2. Informality, livelihoods skills and productivity
- 3.3. Capacity, access, inclusion and partnership
- 3.4. Comparative skills development policy

Unit 4: Entrepreneurship and Inclusive Development

- 4.1. Importance and Role of Entrepreneurship Development
- 4.2. Gender and Rural Entrepreneur Skill Development
- 4.3. Comparative Entrepreneurship Development Models and Policy

Unit 5: Case Studies

- 5.1. Gender and Skill Development in the Horn of Africa
- 5.2. Gender and Entrepreneurship
- 5.3. Gender Role in Regional Governance and Development

Learning and Teaching Methods

The teaching and learning methodology followed by the HIGAD focuses on student-centred and problem-solving. It is believed that this program uses a blend of different teaching and learning methodologies supported by different activities and assignments, such as discussions, debating, seminars, cases studies, project, etc. Teaching and learning will be applied in more flexible ways to suite the focus of the module, stakeholders' interest and expectations as well as the intended outcome of the institute's program.

Multimedia Use

Mode of delivery for this module is mainly face-to-face. It also uses diverse multimedia with a blended approach, which is online/offline using learning management system (LMS) including video-conferences that may suit the interest of clients and effectiveness of teaching/learning process. Teaching/learning shall be supported with different types of instructional media, such as Whiteboard, Liquid Crystal Display (LCD), Flip chart, Magnetic board, etc.

References

- Andrews, P., 2007. "Democracy stops at my front door: obstacles to gender equality in South Africa" Loyola International Law Review. Vol. 5. 15-28.
- Ardichvilli, A., Cardozo, R., & Ray, S., 2003. A Theory of Entrepreneurial Opportunity Identification and Development. Journal of Business Venturing. Vol. 18, pp 105–124.
- Betcherman, G. et al., 2007. 'Global Inventory of Interventions to Support Young Workers Synthesis Report', World Bank.
 - $http://siteresources.worldbank.org/EXTECAREGTOPYOUTH/Resources/YEI_Synthesis_Paper_Final_July_13_2007.pdf$
- Beyond 2015. 2013. 'Population Dynamics: Realizing the Future We Want for All'. The Post–2015 Development Agenda Global Thematic Consultation.
- Blattman, C., Fiala, N. and Martinez, S., 2011. 'Employment Generation in Rural Africa: Mid-term Results from an Experimental Evaluation of the Youth Opportnities Program in Northern Uganda'. The World Bank.
- Budig, M.J. 2006. "Gender, self-employment, and earnings: the interlocking structures of family and professional status" Gender Society. Vol.20. 725-753.
- Carter, S., and Jones-Evans, D., 2006. Enterprise and small business: Principles, practice and policy. (2nd ed.). Harlow: Pearson Education.

- Chaaban, J. and Cunningham, W., 2011. 'Measuring the Economic Gain of Investing in Girls: The Girl Effect Dividend'. The World Bank Human Development Network. Children and Youth Unit & Poverty Reduction and Economic Management Network. Gender Unit.
- Chambers, R. and Lake, A., 2002. 'Youth Business International: Bridging the gap between unemployment and self-employment for disadvantaged youth'. Skills Working Paper No. 3. InFocus Program on Skills, Knowledge and Employability. International Labour Office. Geneva.
- Cling, J.P, Gubert, F., Nordman, C. and Robilliard, A.-S. (eds). 2007. Youth and Labour Markets in Africa. A Critical Review of Literature. Paris: DIAL.
- Cope, J., and G. Watts., 2000. Learning by doing: An exploration of experience, critical incidents and reflection in entrepreneurial learning. International Journal of Entrepreneurial Behaviour and Research 6 (3): 104–24
- Department for International Development. 2011. A new strategic vision for girls and women: stopping poverty before it starts.
- Department for International Development Civil Society Youth Working Group. 2010. Youth Participation in Development: A Guide for Development Agencies and Policy Makers.
- DFID-CSO Youth Working Group. 2010. 'Youth Participation in Development: A Guide for Development Agencies and Policy Makers'.
- DFID-CSO Youth Working Group. 2013. 'Youth Voices on a Post 2015 World'. Report from a global consultation with youth.
- Desrochers, P. & Sautet, F., 2008. Entrepreneurial Policy: The Case of Regional Specialization vs. Spontaneous Industrial Diversity. Entrepreneurship Theory and Practice, Vol. 32, No 5, pp 813–832.
- Esplen, E., 2006. Engaging men in gender equality: positive strategies and approaches. Sussex: Institute of Development Studies.
- Erikson, T., 2003. Towards a taxonomy of entrepreneurial learning experience among potential entrepreneurs. Journal of Small Business and Enterprise Development 10 (1): 106–12.
- Franck, A.K. & Spehar, A., 2010. Women's labour migration in the context of globalisation. WIDE.
- Gardner, T. & McKinney, M., 2007. "The commodification of women's work: theorizing the advancement of African women" Buffalo Human Rights Law Review Vol. 13, 33-72.
- Gibb, A., 2002. Towards the entrepreneurial university: Entrepreneurship education as a lever for change. Http://www.ncge.com/publication/towards_the_entrepreneurial_university.pdf.
- Hampden-Turner, C., 2010. Teaching innovation and entrepreneurship. ReVision 30 (3–4): 69–78.
- Haynie, J. M., Shepherd, D. A., Mosakowski, E. and Earley, P. C., 2010. A Situated Meta-cognitive Model of the Entrepreneurial Mindset Journal of Business Venturing, Vol. 25, pp 217–29

- Hribernigg, D.,2013. 'Creating Jobs through Youth Entrepreneurship in Côte d'Ivoire'. Blog.

 Business Fights Poverty. February 17, 2013

 http://www.businessfightspoverty.org/profiles/blogs/dorishribernigg-youth-entrepreneurship-in-c-te-d-ivoire-the
- Independent Evaluation Group. 2012. Youth Employment Programs: An evaluation of World Bank and IFC Support. http://ieg.worldbankgroup.org/content/dam/ieg/ye/ye_eval.pdf
- International Conference on Population and Development Beyond 2014. 2012. Bali Global Youth Forum Declaration.
- International Labour Organisation. 2012a. Global Employment Trends for Youth 2012. Geneva.
- International Labour Organisation. 2012b. The Youth Employment Crisis: A Call for Action.
- International Rescue Committee. 2012. Investing in a Youth Dividend.
- Jones-Evans, D., W. Williams, and J. Deacon., 2000. Developing entrepreneurial graduates: An action-learning approach. Education + Training 42 (4–5): 282–8.
- Jones, N., Harper, C. and Watson, C., 2010. Stemming girls' chronic poverty: Catalysing development change by building just social institutions. ODI and CPRC: London.
- Kim, J.C. & Watts, C.H., 2005. "Gaining a foothold: tackling poverty, gender inequality, and HIV in Africa" British Medical Journal. Vol. 331. 769-772.
- Kutzhanova, N., Lyons, T.S. & Lichtenstein, G.A., 2009. Skill-Based Development of Entrepreneurs and the Role of Personal and Peer Group Coaching in Enterprise Development. Economic Development Quarterly, Vol. 20, No. 10.
- Lans, T. W., H., Hulsink, H., Baert, and M. Mulder., 2008. Entrepreneurship education and training in the small business context: Insights from the competence-based approach. Journal of Enterprising Culture 16 (4): 363–83.
- Lichtenstein, G.A. & Lyons, T.S., 2001 The Entrepreneurial Development System: Transforming Business Talent and CommUnit y Economies . Economic Development Quarterly, Vol. 15, pp 3-20.
- Manji, F, Jama, M.F. & Musa R., 2006. (eds.) Breathing life into the African Union Protocol on Women's Rights in Africa. Fahamu Books.
- McLean Hilker, L. and Fraser, E., 2009. 'Youth exclusion, violence, conflict and fragile states'.

 Report prepared for DFID's Equity and Rights Team. Final report.
- McMullen, J.S., Shepherd, D.A., 2006. Entrepreneurial Action and the Role of Uncertainty in the Theory of the Entrepreneur Academy of Management Review, Vol. 31, No. 1, pp 132–152.
- Mo Ibrahim Foundation. 2012. African Youth: Fulfilling the Potential.
- NESTA 2008. Barriers to Developing Entrepreneurial Graduates NESTA (UK)
- Paola Pereznieto, and James Hamilton Harding. 2013. Investing in Youth: Making the Case. ODI.

- Rebouche, R., 2006. "Labour, land, and women's rights in Africa: challenges for the new Protocol on the Rights of Women" Harvard Human Rights Journal. Vol. 19(10). 235-256.
- Social Development Direct. 2009. Youth Exclusion, Violence, Conflict and Fragile States. London.
- Sommers, M., 2006. Youth and Conflict: A brief review of available literature. Washington, DC: USAID.
- UNESCO. 2012. Youth and skills: Putting education to work.
- UN Department of Economic and Social Affairs. 2007. World Youth Report 2007. Young People's Transitions to Adulthood: Progress and Challenges. New York: UN.
- UN Department of Economic and Social Affairs. 2010. World Youth Report 2014. The Youth and Climate Change. New York: UN.
- UN Department of Economic and Social Affairs. 2012. 'Youth Employment: Youth Perspectives on the Pursuit of Decent Work in Changing Times', Summary Report of UN World Youth Report, New York: UNDESA.
- UNFPA (2007) UNFPA Framework for Action on Adolescents and Youth: Opening Doors with Young
- UNFPA. 2010. The Case for Investing in Young People as Part of a National Poverty Reduction Strategy, Second Edition.
- United Nations Conference on Trade and Development (UNCTAD) & Unit ed Nations Development Program (UNDP) Mainstreaming gender into trade and development strategies in Africa UNCTAD and UNDP (2008).
- United States Agency for International Development (USAID) Best practices: Gender and conflict in Africa USAID 2005.
- World Bank. 2012a. Children and Youth in Crisis: Protecting and Promoting Human Development in Times of Economic Shocks.
- World Bank. 2014. World Development Report. The World Bank.

5.3.3 Workload

Contact Hours	50 hours
Self-Study Hours	100 hours
Total Hours	150 hours

5.3.4 Assessment

	Assessment will be base on continuous formative evaluation and
Description	summative evaluation principles. Students' learning and
	understanding about the module will thus be evaluated based on:

	Tests/books/articles review:	20%
	Assignment:	40%
	o Group work:	20%
	Individual work:	20%
	Final Exam:	<u>40%</u>
	Sum total	100%
Examination Types	written	
Examination Duration	3 hours	
Assignments	Quiz, project, wring semester paper, presentation	
Repetition	Based on ECSU policy	

5.3.5 Organizational Data

Module Authors(s)	Full Name	Position / Title	Contact Address
	HIGAD	Professor/Associate/	HIGAD, ECSU,
		Assistant Professor	Addis Ababa,
			Ethiopia
Responsible for	Full name	Position / title	Contact address
Module Teaching*	HIGAD	Professor/Associate/	HIGAD, ECSU,
		Assistant Professor	Addis Ababa,
			Ethiopia
Teaching Sessions	Will be specified while	the institute starts operar	tion

5.4 MODULE 9 HGD-5209: Public Administration, Leadership and Change Management

5.4.1 General Data

Module Code / Number	HGD-5209
Module Title	Public Administration, Leadership and Change Management
Module Level	Masters
Module Type	Core
Duration	One semester, i.e. 16 weeks
Frequency of Offer	Once a year
Mode of Delivery	Face-to-face supported by blended multimedia technology
ECTS	7

5.4.2 Module Information

Description

Leadership and public administration in developmental states are confronted with complex and dynamic processes of change in many ways. On the one hand public services have become complex

and need to be dynamically configured. On the other hand, public service leaders must adapt to

changes in their own duties and environment, as well as they have to initiate changes and act as agents

of change in order to adapt the culture, the strategy and the structure of their organization to the new

environmental conditions.

The module is developed with a special focus on the benefits of change in public administration and

leadership the African context in mind, especially public servants in the Horn of Africa. It draws from

practices and experiences from the different countries in the region. It also takes advantage of the

senior participants by featuring dialogue opportunities for students. The module will be presented in

blended format where students will take classroom presentations and online activities. Though the

module allows for self-paced participation, critical deadlines will help students remain engaged.

Group activities are planned within the module allowing discussions and group project opportunities.

Major focuses of this module are public administration and leadership practices, while managing and

leading continous changes. Hence, several themes will be explicitly and implicitly addressed, such as

human resource management, decision making principles and practices in public service intitutions,

concept of servant leadership, culture and change management (including communication, negotiation

56

and time management) emotional intelligence, motivation and incentives, and coaching skills.

Learning Outcomes

By the end of the module, students should be able to:

Discuss the role leadership as change agent in organisational settings

appreciate leading through the process of dynamically changing public services

explain the importance of efficient resource management in public service intitutions

identify approaches of motivating public servants to become effective in their jobs

state the value of becoming servant leader

apply communication management approaches in public service

Prerequisites: Module HGD-5101

Content Outline

Unit 1: Public Administration and Change Management

1.1. Human Resource Management

1.2. Financial Management

- 1.3. Public Services Management
- 1.4. Change Management

Unit 2: Leadership and Change Management

- 2.1. Thinking in Leadership
- 2.2. Culture, Leadership and Change Management
- 2.3. Time Management
- 2.4. Communication Management

Unit 3: Leadership in dynamically Changing Public Service

- 3.1. Role of Leadership
- 3.2. Complexity and Challenges

Unit 4: Decision Making Principles in Public Administration

- 4.1. Data Driven Decision Making
- 4.2. Participatory Decision Making
- 4.4. Responsibility versus Accountability

Unit 5: Leaders as Public Servants

- 5.1. Leading Public Institutions
- 5.2. Principles of Servant Leadership
- 5.3. Characteristics of a Good Servant Leader

Learning and Teaching Methods

The teaching and learning methodologies of this module are student-centred and problem-solving. It is believed that this module uses a blend of different teaching and learning methodologies such as discussions, debate, seminars, cases studies supported by different learning activities, projects, assignments etc. It uses adaptive flexible teaching and learning methodology to achieve the envisaged learning outcomes. These will be applied in more flexible ways to suite the focus of the module, stakeholders' interest and expectations as well as the intended outcome of the institute's program.

Multimedia Use

Mode of delivery for this module is mainly face-to-face. It also uses diverse multimedia with a blended approach, which is online/offline using learning management system (LMS) including video-conferences that may suit the interest of clients and effectiveness of teaching/learning process. Teaching/learning shall be supported with different types of instructional media, such as Whiteboard, Liquid Crystal Display (LCD), Flip chart, Magnetic board, etc.

References

- Auld, L. Barzelay, M., (2001): The New Public Management: Improving Research and Policy Dialogue. University of California Press, Berkeley.
- Bass, B. (2010). *The Bass handbook of leadership: Theory, Research, and Managerial Applications*. New York, NY: Simon & Schuster.
- Bekkers, V.J., Zouridis, S. (1999). Electronic Service Delivery in Public Administration: some trends and issues. International Review of Administrative Sciences 65, 183–196
- Bennis, W (1994). On Becoming A Leader. (Second Edition) Perseus Publishing
- Bellamy, C., Taylor, J., 1996. New Information and Communications Technologies and Institutional Change. International Journal of Public Sector Management 9, 51–69.
- Bijker, W., Law, J. (Eds.), 1994. Shaping Technology/Building Society: Studies in Sociotechnical Change. The MIT Press, Cambridge Ma
- Crosby, Barbara C., and John M. Bryson. 2005. *Leadership for the Common Good: Tackling Public Problems in a Shared-Power World*. 2nd ed. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass.
- Danziger, J.N., Andersen, K.V., 2002. The impacts of information technology on public administration: an analysis of empirical research from the 'golden age' of transformation. International Journal of Public Administration 25, 591–627.
- Dawes, S.S., 2009. Governance in the digital age: a research and action framework for an uncertain future. Government Information Quarterly 26, 257–264
- Depree, M. (1990). Leadership is an art. Reissue edition. DTP
- Douglas Morgan, Craig Shinn, Marcus Ingle (2010): Public Services Leadership Handbook, Hatfield School of Government Center for Public Service College of Urban and Public Affairs, Portland State University, January 11, 2010
- Kotter, J.P. (1996). Leading Change. Harvard Business School.
- Lunenburg, F. C. (2007). Leadership versus Management: A Key distinction—in theory and practice. In F. L. Dembowski (Ed.), *Educational administration: The roles of leadership and management* (pp. 142-166). Houston, TX: The NCPEA Press/Rice University.
- Matt Andrews, Jesse McConnell, Alison Wescott (2010). Development as Leadership-led Change: A Report for the Global Leadership Initiative. World Bank Studies.
- Paula S. Fassdear (2007). Children of a New World: Society, Culture, and Globalization. New York University Press. Pink, Daniel (--). Drive.
- Tom, C., Per, L., 2007. The whole-of-Government approach to public sector reform. Public Administration Review 67, 1059–1066.

5.4.3 Workload

Contact Hours	70 hours
Self-Study Hours	140 hours
Total Hours	201 hours

5.4.4 Assessment

summative evaluation principles. Students' learning and understanding about the module will thus be evaluated based on: • Tests/books/articles review: 20% • Assignment: 40% • Group work: 20% • Individual work: 20% • Final Exam: 40% Total 100% Examination Types written Examination Duration 3 hours Assignments Quiz, project, wring semester paper, presentation		Assessment will be base on continuous formative	evaluation and
 Tests/books/articles review: 20% Assignment: 40% Group work: 20% Individual work: 20% Final Exam: 40% Total 100% Examination Types written Examination Duration 3 hours Assignments Quiz, project, wring semester paper, presentation 	Description	summative evaluation principles. Students' learning and	
• Assignment: 40% ○ Group work: 20% ○ Individual work: 20% • Final Exam: 40% Total 100% Examination Types written Examination Duration 3 hours Assignments Quiz, project, wring semester paper, presentation		understanding about the module will thus be eval	uated based on:
o Group work:		Tests/books/articles review:	20%
o Individual work: • Final Exam: Total Total Examination Types written Examination Duration 3 hours Assignments Quiz, project, wring semester paper, presentation		Assignment:	40%
• Final Exam: 40% Total 100% Examination Types written Examination Duration 3 hours Assignments Quiz, project, wring semester paper, presentation		o Group work:	20%
Total 100% Examination Types written Examination Duration 3 hours Assignments Quiz, project, wring semester paper, presentation		Individual work:	20%
Examination Types written Examination Duration 3 hours Assignments Quiz, project, wring semester paper, presentation		• Final Exam:	<u>40%</u>
Examination Duration 3 hours Assignments Quiz, project, wring semester paper, presentation		Total	100%
Assignments Quiz, project, wring semester paper, presentation	Examination Types	written	
	Examination Duration	3 hours	
	Assignments	Quiz, project, wring semester paper, presentation	
Repetition Based on ECSU policy	Repetition	Based on ECSU policy	

5.4.5 Organizational Data

Module Authors(s)	Full name	Position / title	Contact address
	HIGAD	Professor/Associate/	HIGAD, ECSU,
		Assistant Professor	Addis Ababa,
			Ethiopia
Responsible for Module	Full name	Position / title	Contact address
Teaching*	HIGAD	Professor/Associate/	HIGAD, ECSU,
		Assistant Professor	Addis Ababa,
			Ethiopia
Teaching Sessions	Will be specified v	while the institute starts o	peration

6. Second Year, First Semester

6.1 MODULE 10 HGD-6110: Seminar in Governance and Development

6.1.1 General Data

Module Code /	HGD-6110
Number	
Module Title	Seminar in Governance and Development
Module Level	MA
Module Type	Seminar
Frequency of Offer	Once a year - second year, first semester
Mode of Delivery	Independent research and seminar presentation
Duration	One semester, i.e. 16 weeks
ECTS	10

6.1.2 Module Information

Description

The HIGAD MA program seminar is designed to allow students to focus on specific areas or problems or research fields to which they have either interest or experiences. The seminar module is organised in such a way that, different area of research area, problem fields, special areas of interest that are covered or not covered in detail during the core module sessions, etc. This module highlights vital themes and provides brief information on areas recommend for research and seminar and provides instructions as well as guideline to undertake preliminary research on area of interest individually or in group and present the outcome during seminar sessions.

Learning Outcomes

After undertaking seminar and presentation learners shall be able to:

- design specific research problem areas related to governance and development in the Horn of Africa,
- carry out individual or group-based research in specific areas governance and development in the Horn of Africa.
- prepare and present seminar report

Content

Areas of research and presentation for the seminar sessions shall be on:

- Development Communication and Participation,
- Soft Skills and Leadership,
- Knowledge Management in Public Services,
- Intercultural Relationship and Collaboration,
- Environmental and Resources Governance,
- Poverty Eradication and Sustainable Development,
- E-Governance and Information Management Systems.

Learning and Teaching Methods

The seminar module is a special module designed to enable students to focus on specific problem areas, so that they can conduct preliminary research-individually or in-group. The teaching and learning methods is mainly student-led independent work, i.e. selection of specific special areas of good governance and development, conceptualisation, data collection report writing and presentation.

To achieve the envisaged outcome of this module, HIGAD will follow continuous reflective evaluation system that enbles students' skill in preparing and presenting seminar papers. To realise this, HIGAD will provide support and feedback on students' semanir work regularly.

Multimedia Use

Medcia used for this module is mainly face-to-face video-conferences (if face-to-face i that may suit the interest of clients and effectiveness of teaching/learning process. Teaching/learning shall be supported with different types of instructional media, such as Whiteboard, Liquid Crystal Display (LCD), Flip chart, Magnetic board, etc.

References

Diverse research literature on seminar themes to which learners are interested in research and presentation.

6.1.3 Workload

Contact Hours	75 hours
Self-Study Hours	225 hours
Total Hours	300 hours

6.1.4 Assessment

	Assessment will be base on continuous formative evaluation and			
Description	summative evaluation principles. Students' learning and			
	understanding about the module will thus be evaluated based on:			
	• Paper/Project report: 60%			
	• Paper/Project presentation 40%			
	Sum total 100%			
Types	Written			
Duration	variable			
Assignment type	Seminar presentation			
Repetition	Based ECSU Policy			

6.1.5 Organizational Data

Seminar Facilitator	Full Name	Position / Title	Contact Address	
	HIGAD	Professor/Associate/	HIGAD, E0	CSU,
		Assistant Professor	Addis Al	baba,
			Ethiopia	
Seminar Facilitator	Full name	Position / title	Contact address	
	HIGAD	Professor/Associate/	HIGAD, E0	CSU,
		Assistant Professor	Addis Al	baba,
			Ethiopia	
Teaching Sessions	Will be specified while the institute starts operation			

6.2 MODULE 11 HGD-6111: Master's Thesis Proposal

6.2.1 General Data

Module Code /Number	HGD-6111
Module Title	Thesis Proposal
Module Level	MA
Module Type	Thesis
Frequency of Offer	Once a year - second year, first semester
Duration	One semester, i.e. 16 weeks
Mode of Delivery	No specific delivery mechanism, but regular communication
ECTS	10

6.2.2 Module Information

Description

Graduate candidates are required to prepare and submit Master's Thesis research proposal during the

first semester of the second year. The proposal is strongly advised to address real problem, challenges

and best cases of governance and development in the Horn of African countries. As a research

proposal, it shall clearly sketch the research problem statement, including concrete research

question(s); review of literature; methodological approach, data collection and analysis. Students are

also encouraged to conduct empirical action-based case study research, which will be further

developed as a full-fledged thesis required the fulfilment of the graduating in Master's of Art in

Governance and Development.

The length the thesis proposal report should be approximately between 6.000 and 7.000 words. After

evaluating the thesis proposal report and if it fulfills the requirement for a Master's of Arts Degree

thesis proposal, the advisor will request graduating candidates to briefly present and defend their

research thesis proposal.

Learning Outcomes

After undertaking this study, the trainee will be able to:

design research project proposal and.

formulate problem statement review of literature, research methodology, and data collection

prepare a research proposal report and submitted for approved by supervisor(s) and the

institute

develop research skill

Content Outline

No specific content, except thesis research guideline and reference materials recommended

Prerequisites: Successful completion of the core modules

Learning and Teaching Methods

To achieve the envisaged outcome, various teaching and learning methods will be applied, such as

Students will extensively review literature and case studies in their research area

Thesis advisors will continuously motivate and ensure conducting of self-paced research

63

Multimedia Use

- Books, articles, journals, research reports, seminar and conference proceedings, diverse unpublished materials, etc.
- Use of various multimedia to effectively facilitate communication and interaction between students and thesis advisor(s)

References

Diverse research literature on thesis writing and related to candidates research areas

6.2.3 Workload

Contact Hours	75	hours	(No	formal	class	other	than	consultation	with
	sup	ervisor((s))						
Self-Study Hours	220	hours							
Total Hours	300	hours							

6.2.4 Assessment

	Assessment will be base on research thesis report, and the final			
Description	presentation and defending (oral examination on the thesis			
	report). Therefore, the following assessment will be:			
	• MA Thesis proposal report : 70%			
	• Presentation of the MA Thesis (defence) 30%			
	Total 100%			
Examination Types	Evaluation of the report and Oral presentation			
Examination Duration	30 minutes presentation			
Assignments	writing up and submitting MA Thesis proposal report			
Repetition	Based on ECSU policy			

6.2.5 Organizational Data

Thesis Advisor	Full Name	Position / Title	Contact Address
	HIGAD	Professor/Associate/	HIGAD, ECSU,
		Assistant Professor	Addis Ababa,
			Ethiopia

7. Second Year, Second Semester

7.1 MODULE 11 HGD-6212: Master's Thesis

7.1.1 General Data

Module Code /	HGD-6212
Number	
Module Title	Master's Thesis
Module Level	MA
Module Type	Thesis
Frequency of Offer	Once a year - second year, second semester
Duration	One semester, i.e. 16 weeks
ECTS	20

7.1.2 Module Information

Description

The Masters of Art thesis is an academic research that shall be conducted by the graduating candidates under supervision of teaching and research staff of the HIGAD or external advisory assigned by the Institute assigned by the institute.

Based on the thesis proposal worked out in previous semester, graduating candidates of the HIGAD Master's of Arts program shall demonstrated successful completion of higer level standard of Master's thesis. The research and report writing will be closely supervised by a thesis advisor(s) at all stages-from problem formulation up to completion of writing the report and submission. Graduate candidates must apply the fundamentals of scientific research technique and undertake original investigation on specific topic. The length the thesis report should be approximately between 12.000 and 15.000 words. Once submitted, the thesis will be evaluated by the supervisor and at least one external examiner. After rigorous evaluation of the thesis report and, when it is found fulfilling the standard a Master's of Arts Degree research, graduating candidates will be requested to briefly present and defend their research thesis.

Learning Outcomes

Upon the successful completion of this module, the student is able to:

• design and conduct higher level scientific academic research

- define problem statement, review related literature, formulate hypothesis, and select appropriate research methodology
- collect, analyze and interpret data;
- write up the thesis report

Prerequisites: Successful completion of the core modules and thesis proposal

Content Outline

No specific content, except thesis research guideline and reference materials recommended

Learning and Teaching Methods

To achieve the envisaged outcome, various teaching and learning methods will be applied, such as

- Students will extensively review literature and case studies in their research area
- Thesis advisors will continuously motivate and ensure conducting of self-paced research

Multimedia Use

- Books, articles, journals, research reports, seminar and conference proceedings, diverse unpublished materials, etc.
- Use of various multimedia to effectively facilitate communication and interaction between students and thesis advisor(s)

References

Diverse research literature on thesis writing and related issues

7.1.3 Workload

Contact Hours	200 Hours Contact time with advisor(s)			
Self-Study Hours	400 Hours Independent research time			
Total Hours	600 Hours			

7.1.4 Assessment

Assessment will be base on research thesis report, and t				
Description	presentation and defending (oral examination on the the			
	report). Therefore, the following assessment will be:			
	• MA Thesis report :			
	Presentation of the MA Thesis (defence)	30%		

	Total	100%
Examination Types	Oral presentation	
Examination Duration	1 hour	
Assignments	writing MA Thesis report and presentation (defence)	
Repetition	Based on ECSU policy	

7.1.5 Organizational Data

Thesis Advisor	Full Name	Position / Title	Contact Address	
	HIGAD	Professor/Associate/	HIGAD, ECSU,	
		Assistant Professor	Addis Ababa,	
			Ethiopia	
Thesis Examiner(s)	Full name	Position / title	Contact address HIGAD, ECSU,	
	HIGAD	Professor/Associate/		
		Assistant Professor	Addis Ababa,	
			Ethiopia	